
PERKASIE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Agenda for Council Committee Meeting of October 6, 2025 

1. Meeting Convenes at 7:00 PM – Council Meeting Room
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance – Mayor Hollenbach
3. Attendance
4. Public Forum
5. President’s Remarks
6. Public Works Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Steve Rose (Chair), Chuck Brooks, Robin

Schilling, Dave Worthington
A. Consider NPDES Stormwater Discharges from MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan
B. Consider Expenditure for Rock Salt Purchase for 2025-2026 Winter Season
C. Consider Resolution #2025-47 – Handicap Parking Spot for 509 Vine Street

7. Public Utility Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Dave Weaver (Chair), Scott Bomboy, Kelly
Laustsen, Jim Ryder

A. Perkasie Wholesale Power Cost Monthly Report
B. Consider Donation Request – Nockamixon State Park
C. Installed Capacity Update

8. Planning and Zoning Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Robin Schilling (Chair), Randy
Faulkner, Dave Weaver, Dave Worthington

A. Consider Resolution #2025-44 – Stormwater Agreement for Casadonti Homes –
Grandview Avenue

B. Discuss Draft Ordinance – Parking Restrictions on West Market Street & South
Ninth Street

C. Discuss Position on 505 Constitution Avenue
D. Update on Construction Progress – Constitution Square

9. Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Dave Worthington (Chair), Scott
Bomboy, Randy Faulkner, Robin Schilling

A. Consider Park Event Application – Upper Bucks United
10. Personnel and Policy Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Chuck Brooks (Chair), Kelly

Laustsen, Steve Rose, Jim Ryder
A. Consider Hiring of As-Needed Events Assistant

11. Finance Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Scott Bomboy (Chair), Chuck Brooks, Randy
Faulkner, Jim Ryder, Robin Schilling

A. Consider Resolution #2025-45 – 650 Shadywood Drive – Grading Escrow Release
B. Consider Resolution #2025-46 – 805 North Ridge Road – Grading Escrow Release
C. Consider Resolution #2025-48 – Perkasie Regional Authority Reservoir Replacement

Project – Final Escrow Release
12. Economic Development Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Kelly Laustsen (Chair), Randy

Faulkner, Steve Rose, Dave Weaver
A. Consider Special Event Permit Application & Fee Waiver Request – Pennridge

Homecoming Parade
B. Consider Special Event Permit Application – The Craftery Market

13. Public Safety Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Randy Faulkner (Chair), Chuck Brooks,
Mayor Jeff Hollenbach, Kelly Laustsen, Jim Ryder



14. Historical Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Scott Bomboy (Chair), Steve Rose, Dave
Worthington

A. Consider Award of RFP# 2025-01:  Perkasie National Historic Preservation District
Nomination

B. South Perkasie Covered Bridge Project Update
15. Youth Councilor Report
16. Other Business
17. Executive Session
18. Public Forum
19. Press Forum
20. Adjournment

Next Meeting:   Monday, October 20, 2025 – 7:00 PM 

Perkasie Borough Council agendas are available via e-mail in advance of the meetings.  Please send any 
agenda requests to: admin@perkasieborough.org.  The agendas and Perkasie Borough Council meeting 
packets are both available on the Borough’s website at www.perkasieborough.org.  



NPDES Stormwater Discharges from MS4 
Pollutant Reduction Plan 

for 
Borough of Perkasie 

Bucks County, Pennsylvania 

September 2017 
Revised August 2025 

Prepared For: 

Borough of Perkasie 
620 W. Chestnut St. 
Perkasie, PA 18944 

215 257-5065 

Prepared By: 

Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 

Engineers ♦ Land Surveyors ♦ Planners ♦ GIS Consultants
65 E. Butler Avenue, Suite 100 

New Britain, PA  18901 
215 345-4330 



MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 
for 

Borough of Perkasie 
Bucks County, Pennsylvania 

Table of Contents 

A. Public Participation .......................................................................................................... 2 

B. Map ................................................................................................................................. 3 

C. Pollutants of Concern ...................................................................................................... 4 

D. Determine Existing Loading for Pollutants of Concern .................................................... 5 

E. Select BMPs to Achieve the Minimum Required Reductions in Pollutant Loading .......... 6 

F. Identify Funding Mechanism(s) ........................................................................................ 8 

G. Identify Responsible Parties for Operation and Maintenance (O&M) of BMPs ................ 8 

H. General Information  ........................................................................................................ 9 

 

  



List of Tables 

Table D-1: Summary of  Areas .................................................................................................... 5 

Table E-1: Summary of BMPs ..................................................................................................... 6 

Table E-2: MS4 PRP Strategy Summary ..................................................................................... 7 

Table G-1: Operation and Maintenance of BMPs .......................................................................  8 

 

Appendices 

Appendix A MS4 Requirements Table 

Applicable portion of the MS4 Requirements Table (Municipal) Anticipated 

Obligations for Subsequent NPDES Permit Term 

 

Appendix B Public Participation 

  Appendix B-1 Public Notice & Proof of Advertisement 

  Appendix B-2 Public Comments Received (None Received) 

  Appendix B-3 Public Meeting Agenda and Meeting Minutes  

 

Appendix C Maps  

Appendix C-1 Perkasie Borough Storm Sewer Collection System Map 

 

Appendix D Existing Loading for Pollutants of Concern 

Appendix D-1: EMC Table 

Appendix D-2: ROW Calculations 

Appendix D-3: Non-Parsed Area Calculations 

Appendix D-4: Total Existing Sediment Load & Required Reduction Calculation 

 

Appendix E Loading Reduction Calculations and O&M 

Appendix E-1:  Spruce Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP 

Appendix E-2:  Arch Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP 

 

Appendix F Streambank Restoration 

Appendix F-1:  Pleasant Spring Creek Streambank Stabilization Plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 1 of 11 

The Borough of Perkasie, Bucks County (Municipality) is submitting this Pollution Reduction 

Plan (PRP) in accordance with the requirements of General Permit PAG-13 for Stormwater 

Discharges from Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4); specifically, in 

accordance with the MS4 Requirements Table (Municipal) Anticipated Obligations for 

Subsequent NPDES Permit Term.  The Municipality must create a PRP due to discharges from 

their MS4 to Unnamed Tributaries to East Branch Perkiomen Creek and Pleasant Spring Creek, 

both of which have been listed as impaired for sediment (see Appendix A).  All unnamed 

tributaries as well as Pleasant Spring Creek are tributaries to the East Branch Perkiomen Creek 

and as such this PRP was created treating each of these streams as being part of the same 

watershed.  Due to parsing, the Municipality’s MS4 does not discharge to Threemile Run or 

Lake Nockamixon and therefore, this PRP does not address these watersheds.    

 

The intent of this MS4 PRP is to establish the existing loading of pollutants discharged from the 

MS4 to Unnamed Tributaries to East Branch Perkiomen Creek and Pleasant Spring Creek, and 

to present a plan to reduce these pollutants.  This MS4 PRP is organized to follow the “Required 

PRP Elements” presented in the PRP Instructions included as part of the PAG-13 MS4 General 

Permit instruction package.  This PRP will be evaluated and updated by the Municipality on an 

as-needed basis, based on its effectiveness in reducing pollutant loads in discharges from the 

regulated small MS4.  If this occurs, the Municipality will work with the Pennsylvania Department 

of Environmental Protection (PADEP) for review and approval of any revisions or updates. 

 

Each MS4 PRP must include the following Required PRP Elements: 

 

Section A:  Public Participation 

Section B:  Map 

Section C:  Pollutants of Concern 

Section D:  Determine Existing Loading for Pollutants of Concern 

Section E:  Select BMPs to Achieve the Minimum Required Reductions in Pollutant Loading 

Section F:   Identify Funding Mechanisms 

Section G:  Identify Responsible Parties for Operation and Maintenance (O&M) of BMPs 

  



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 2 of 11 

A. Public Participation 

As part of the preparation of this MS4 PRP, public participation is required. The MS4 

shall complete the public participation measures listed below, and report in the PRP that each 

was completed: 

• A complete copy of the PRP shall be available for public review.  

• The applicant shall publish, in a newspaper of general circulation in the area, a public 

notice containing a statement describing the plan, where it may be reviewed by the 

public, and the length of time the permittee will provide for the receipt of comments. The 

public notice must be published at least 45 days prior to the deadline for submission of 

the PRP to DEP.  (See Appendix B-1) 

• The applicant shall accept written comments for a minimum of 30 days from the date of 

public notice.  (No public comments were received) 

• The applicant shall accept comments from any interested member of the public at a 

public meeting or hearing, which may include a regularly scheduled meeting of the 

governing body of the municipality or municipal authority that is the permittee. (No 

public comments were received at the originally posted public meeting held on 

August 7, 2017) 

• The updated report is currently under public review until October 2, 2025  

• The applicant shall consider and make a record of the consideration of each timely 

comment received from the public during the public comment period concerning the 

plan, identifying any changes made to the plan in response to the comment.  (No 

comments were received and therefore no changes were made as a result of 

public comment)   

All required documentation of public participation, as outlined above, is included as Appendix B.   

• Date PRP public notice was published in newspaper:  July 24, 2017, revised September 

2, 2025 

• Date PRP was made available for public review/comment:  July 24, 2017, revised 

September 2, 2025 

• End date for receipt of written comments (30 days from the date of public notice): August 

23, 2017, revised October 2, 2025 

• Date PRP listed on the public meeting agenda: July 17, 2017, revised September 2025 

• Date PRP comments were accepted at a public meeting:  August 7, 2017, Revised 

September 15, 2025  



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 3 of 11 

B. Map 

Mapping is an integral part of developing the PRP and requires a level of detail suitable to 

determine the existing land uses, impervious/pervious surface coverages, topography and 

loading for the sediment.  The MS4 PRP map shall show land uses and / or impervious / 

pervious surfaces and the storm sewershed boundary.  The MS4 PRP map(s) shall also show 

the proposed locations of structural BMPs that will be implemented to achieve the required 

pollutant load reductions.  The storm sewershed boundary shown on the Municipality MS4 PRP 

Map constitutes the storm sewershed to each of the MS4 outfalls within the MS4’s jurisdiction 

that discharge to Unnamed Tributaries to East Branch Perkiomen Creek and Pleasant Spring 

Creek. 

 

The Municipality MS4 PRP Map identifies the storm sewershed boundary, the existing land uses 

and impervious/pervious surface coverages, as well as the proposed locations of structural best 

management practices (BMPs) to be implemented to achieve required pollutant load reductions.  

The Municipality MS4 PRP Map is included in Appendix C.   

The Municipality MS4 PRP Map also shows parsed areas, which are areas within the storm 

sewershed that are not included in the calculation of land area and existing pollutant loading.  

All BMPs located within these parsed areas have not been counted toward achieving pollutant 

reduction objectives.  68% of the Municipality has been parsed (1,110 of the 1,636 acres).  

Examples of land area that have been parsed include:  

• The land area associated with non-municipal stormwater NPDES permit coverage that 

exists within the urbanized area of a municipality;  

• Land area associated with PennDOT roadways and the Pennsylvania Turnpike (roads and 

right of ways);  

• Land areas in which stormwater runoff does not enter the MS4. If an accurate storm 

sewershed map is developed, these lands may be parsed or excluded as part of that 

process. Potential examples include homeowner’s associations and schools which do not 

contain municipal roads or other municipal infrastructure.  

 



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 4 of 11 

C. Pollutants of Concern 

The Municipality shall calculate the existing loading of sediment in lbs/year; calculate the 

minimum reduction in loading in lbs/year; select BMP(s) to reduce loading; and demonstrate 

that the selected BMPs will achieve the minimum reductions. 

 

For PRPs developed for impaired water [“Appendix E” noted in the Requirements Table column 

in the MS4 Requirements Table (Municipal) Anticipated Obligations for Subsequent NPDES 

Permit Term], the pollutants are based on the impairment listing as provided in the MS4 

Requirements Table (Municipal) Anticipated Obligations for Subsequent NPDES Permit Term.  

If the impairment is based on siltation only, a minimum of 10% sediment reduction is required.  If 

the impairment is based on nutrients only or other surrogates for nutrients (e.g., “Excessive 

Algal Growth” and “Organic Enrichment/Low D.O.”), a minimum 5% TP reduction is required.  If 

the impairment is due to both siltation and nutrients, both sediment (10% reduction) and TP (5% 

reduction) must be addressed.   

 

The impaired downstream waters are Unnamed Tributaries to East Branch Perkiomen Creek 

and Pleasant Spring Creek, both of which have impairments for sediment.  A minimum 10% 

reduction is required for sediment.  The MS4 PRP presents the minimum reduction in loading 

for sediment as pounds per year (lbs/yr).   

  



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 5 of 11 

D. Determine Existing Loading for Pollutants of Concern 

TABLE D-1 below summarizes the division of the total area of the Municipality. 

TABLE D-1: SUMMARY OF AREAS 

Area Description Acres 

Parsed 1110 

Borough ROW 76 

Residential 362 

Commercial 66 

Open Space 22 

Total Area 1636 

 

The loading and reduction for sediment was calculated as follows: 

 

The Municipality’s permit obligation applies to the land area that drains to the municipal 

separate storm sewer (See TABLE D-1) from within the jurisdiction of the MS4 permittee (the 

“storm sewershed”) less that of the pre-developed condition (as if the whole Municipality were 

wooded).  The storm sewershed land area that drains to the municipal separate storm sewer 

from within the jurisdiction of the MS4 to Unnamed Tributaries to East Branch Perkiomen Creek 

and Pleasant Spring Creek were delineated using PAMAP data known as Light Detection and 

Ranging (LiDAR) contours.  Lands owned by the State or County as well as land areas that 

drained directly to non-Borough roads, streams, or permitted BMPs were parsed.  GIS software 

was then used to define each zoning area in the Municipality and utilize the total area tool to 

calculate the total sediment loading to Unnamed Tributaries to East Branch Perkiomen Creek 

and Pleasant Spring Creek created by the Municipality for the non-parsed areas.  Based upon 

an analysis of the impervious and pervious coverages within the different zoning areas in the 

Municipality that included event mean concentrations (EMCs) (per Chapter 8 of the BMP 

Manual) and weighted rainfall volumes for the non-parsed areas the existing sediment load was 

calculated. 

 



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 6 of 11 

The existing loading condition was calculated for the Municipality on July 10, 2017.  The 

Municipality has a total non-parsed sediment loading of 85,588 lbs/year in the East Branch 

Perkiomen Creek storm sewershed after factoring in 450 linear feet of streambank stabilization 

that was performed in 2011.  This impairment require a minimum 10% reduction (8,559 

lbs/year).  This minimum sediment reduction will result in the Municipality’s MS4 having a new 

sediment load of 77,029. 

 

E. Select BMPs to Achieve the Minimum Required Reductions in Pollutant 

Loading 

Drainage areas to proposed BMP locations were delineated (BMP DA) using the 

aforementioned LiDAR contours and load reductions for several BMPs were calculated.     

 

The Municipality has a requirement to reduce sediment by 10% in the East Branch Perkiomen 

Creek storm sewershed.  Implementation of BMPs or land use changes must be proposed that 

will result in meeting the minimum required reduction in pollutant loading with the storm 

sewershed(s) identified by the MS4.  These BMP(s) must be implemented within five (5) years 

of DEP’s approval of coverage under the PAS-13 General Permit, and must be located within 

the storm sewersheds of the applicable impaired waters, on either public or private property.   

 

The Municipality plans to achieve the sediment reduction by designing, constructing, operating 

and maintaining BMPs.  The Municipality is required to implement this plan over the next five (5) 

years.  Table E-1 is a summary of the proposed BMPs under consideration, including location, 

type, area treated, and sediment removed: 

TABLE E-1: SUMMARY OF BMPS 

BMP 

LOCATION 

BMP TYPE AREA TREATED 

BY BMP (Acres) 

SEDIMENT REMOVED 

BY BMP (lbs/year) 

Spruce St. Storm Sewer System 

Solids Removal* 

11 Up to 2,895 

Arch St. Storm Sewer System 

Solids Removal*  

15 Up to 3,764 

Pleasant Spring 

Creek 

Streambank 

Restoration 

407 Up to 18,266 



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 7 of 11 

*The Storm Sewer System Solids Removal units have been installed by Developers and will be 

owned and maintained by the Borough once dedicated. 

 

As denoted in Section D, the load after proposed BMPs are implemented for the East Branch 

Perkiomen Creek Storm Sewershed should be 77,029 lbs/year.  As demonstrated above in 

Table E-1 the proposed total load reduction will be at least 8,559 lbs/year and as much as 

24,925 lbs/year, which meets and/or exceeds the minimum required reduction in pollutant 

loading.   

 

The following table summarizes the sediment load and required sediment reduction for the East 

Branch Perkiomen Creek Storm Sewershed.  Also included is a summary of the proposed 

BMPs contemplated to achieve the required sediment load reduction.  

TABLE E-2: MS4 PRP STRATEGY SUMMARY 

Description Value Unit 

   

East Branch Perkiomen Creek Small 
Watershed 

1636 acres 

Parsed Area - Total 1110 acres 

East Branch Perkiomen Creek Storm 
Sewershed 

526 acres 

Existing Sediment Load 85,588 lbs/year 

Required Sediment Pollutant Load 
Reduction Percentage 

10 % 

Minimum Required Pollutant Load  
Reduction 

8,559 lbs/year 

Proposed Sediment Load Reduction from 
BMPs 

8,559 to 
24,925 

lbs/year 

Proposed Sediment Total Load with 
Proposed BMPs Installed 

60,663 to 
77,029 

lbs/year 

 

  



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 8 of 11 

F. Identify Funding Mechanism(s) 

The Municipality intends to apply for all related grants, such as growing greener, to implement 

these BMPs.  The Municipality intends to utilize general fund money to cover the construction 

costs for the proposed BMPs should grant money not be awarded.  The BMPs are not expected 

to be constructed until the last two years of the new permit cycle.   

The two Storm Sewer System Solids Removal units have been provided and installed by 

developers as part of the land development process.  Once dedicated, these units will be owned 

and maintained by the Borough.  The streambank restoration of the Pleasant Spring Creek is 

being funded by the Borough general funds. 

G. Identify Responsible Parties for Operation and Maintenance (O&M) of BMPs 

Once implemented, the BMPs must be maintained in order to continue producing the expected 

pollutant reductions.  Applicants must identify the following for each selected BMP: 

• The parties responsible for ongoing O&M; 

• The activities involved with O&M for each BMP; and  

• The frequency at which O&M activities will occur. 

Actual O&M activities will be identified by the MS4 in their Annual MS4 Status Reports, 

submitted under the General Permit.  Once the PRP has been approved by PADEP and the 

Municipality begins design of the BMPs, an O&M manual will be created and submitted to 

PADEP for review and comment. 

Table G-1 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF BMPs 

NAME OF BMP LOCATION OF 
BMP 

OWNER/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 

O&M ACTIVITY & 
FREQUENCY 

Storm Sewer System 

Solids Removal 

Spruce St. Department of 
Public Works 

 
Inspection and Pollutant 

Removal - Quarterly 
 
 

Storm Sewer System 

Solids Removal 

Arch St. Department of 
Public Works 

 
Inspection and Pollutant 

Removal - Quarterly 
 

Streambank 

Restoration 

Pleasant 

Spring Creek 

N/A N/A 
 

 



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 9 of 11 

H. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Terms: The term “nutrients” refers to “Total Nitrogen” (TN) and “Total Phosphorus” (TP) 
unless specifically stated otherwise in PADEP’s latest Integrated Report. The terms 
“sediment,” “siltation,” and “suspended solids” all refer to inorganic solids and are 
hereinafter referred to as “sediment.”  
 
Pollutants of Concern and Required Reductions: For all PRPs, MS4s shall calculate 
existing loading of the pollutant(s) of concern, in lbs/year; calculate the minimum 
reduction in loading, in lbs/year; select BMP(s) to reduce loading; and demonstrate that 
the selected BMP(s) will achieve the minimum reductions.  
 
For PRPs developed for impaired waters (Appendix E), the pollutant(s) are based on 
the impairment listing, as provided in the MS4 Requirements Table. If the impairment is 
based on siltation only, a minimum 10% sediment reduction is required. If the 
impairment is based on nutrients only or other surrogates for nutrients (e.g., “Excessive 
Algal Growth” and “Organic Enrichment/Low D.O.”), a minimum 5% TP reduction is 
required. If the impaired is due to both siltation and nutrients, both sediment (10% 
reduction) and TP (5% reduction) must be addressed.  
 
Existing Pollutant Loading: Existing loading must be calculated and reported as of the 
date of the development of the PRP. MS4s may not claim credit for street sweeping and 
other non-structural BMPs implemented in the past. If structural BMPs were 
implemented prior to development of the PRP and continue to be operated and 
maintained, the MS4 may claim pollutant reduction credit in the form of reduced existing 
loading.  

 
NOTE – An MS4 may not reduce its obligations for achieving pollutant load reductions through 
previously installed BMPs. An MS4 may only use such BMPs to reduce its estimate of existing 
pollutant loading. For example, if a rain garden was installed ten years ago and is expected to 
remove 100 lbs of sediment annually, and the overall annual loading of sediment in the storm 
sewershed is estimated to be 1,000 lbs without specifically addressing the rain garden, an MS4 
may not claim that the rain garden satisfies its obligations to reduce sediment loading by 10%. 
The MS4 may, however, use the rain garden to demonstrate that existing loading is 900 lbs 
instead of 1,000 lbs, and 90 lbs rather than 100 lbs needs to be reduced during the term of permit 
coverage.  

 
BMP Effectiveness: All MS4s must use the BMP effectiveness values contained within 
PADEP’s BMP Effectiveness Values document (3800-PM-BCW0100m) or Chesapeake 
Bay Program expert panel reports for BMPs listed in those resources when determining 
pollutant load reductions in PRPs. For BMPs not listed in 3800-PM-BCW0100m or 
expert panel reports, MS4s may use effectiveness values from other technical 
resources; such resources must be documented in the PRP.  
 
Combining PRPs: If the MS4 discharges into multiple local surface waters impaired for 
nutrients and/or sediment, one PRP may be submitted to satisfy Appendix E but 



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 10 of 11 

calculations and BMP selections must be completed independently for the storm 
sewershed of each impaired water. If, for example, an MS4 permittee must complete 
three PRPs according to the MS4 Requirements Table for three separate surface 
waters, storm sewershed maps must be developed, existing loads must be calculated, 
and BMPs must be implemented for pollutant reductions independently within those 
storm sewersheds. In other words, BMPs cannot be implemented in one storm 
sewershed to count toward pollutant reductions in an entirely separate storm sewershed 
for a different impaired water.  
 
Where local surface waters are impaired for nutrients and/or sediment, and those 
waters are tributary to a larger body of water that is also impaired, MS4s can propose 
BMPs within the upstream impaired waters to meet the pollutant reduction requirements 
of both the upstream and downstream waters. For example, if Stream A flows through a 
municipality that is tributary to Stream B, both are impaired and the MS4 has discharges 
to both streams, the MS4 can implement BMPs in the storm sewershed of Stream A to 
satisfy pollutant reduction requirements for both Streams A and B. In general, the MS4 
permittee would not be able to satisfy pollutant reduction requirements for both streams 
if BMPs were only implemented in the storm sewershed of Stream B; however, on a 
case by case basis DEP will consider such proposals where it can be demonstrated that 
implementing BMPs in the upstream storm sewershed is infeasible.  
 
If, however, Stream A does not flow into Stream B, both are impaired and the MS4 has 
discharges to both streams, in general DEP would expect that BMPs be implemented in 
the storm sewershed of both streams to meet pollutant reduction requirements.  
 
MS4s participating in collaborative efforts are encouraged to contact DEP’s Bureau of 
Clean Water during the PRP development phase for feedback on proposed 
approaches. 
 
Joint PRPs: MS4s may develop and submit a joint PRP, regardless of whether the 
MS4s will be submitting a “joint NOI” or are already co-permittees. In general, the MS4s 
participating in a joint PRP should have contiguous land areas. The “study area” to be 
mapped is the combined storm sewershed for all MS4 jurisdictions.  
 
BMP Selection: MS4s may propose and take credit for only those BMPs that are not 
required to meet regulatory requirements or otherwise go above and beyond regulatory 
requirements. For example, a BMP that was installed to meet Chapter 102 NPDES 
permit requirements for stormwater associated with construction activities may not be 
used to meet minimum pollutant reductions unless the MS4 can demonstrate that the 
BMP exceeded regulatory requirements; if this is done, the MS4 may take credit for only 
those reductions that will occur as a result of exceeding regulatory requirements.  

 
NOTE – Street sweeping may be proposed as a BMP for pollutant loading reductions if 1) street 
sweeping is not the only method identified for reducing pollutant loading, and 2) the BMP 



Borough of Perkasie MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan 

September 2017, Rev August 2025  Page 11 of 11 

effectiveness values contained in 3800-PM-BCW0100m or Chesapeake Bay Program expert 
panel reports are utilized. 

 
Submission of PRP:  Attach one copy of the PRP with the NOI or individual permit 
application that is submitted to the regional office of DEP responsible for reviewing the 
NOI or application. In addition, one copy of the PRP (not the NOI or application) must 
be submitted to DEP’s Bureau of Clean Water (BCW). BCW prefers electronic copies of 
PRPs, if possible. Email the electronic version of the PRP, including map(s) (if feasible), 
to RA-EPPAMS4@pa.gov. If the MS4 determines that submission of an electronic copy 
is not possible, submit a hard copy to: PA Department of Environmental Protection, 
Bureau of Clean Water, 400 Market Street, PO Box 8774, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8774. 
 
PRP Implementation and Final Report:  Under the PAG-13 General Permit, the 
permittee must achieve the required pollutant load reductions within 5 years following 
DEP’s approval of coverage under the General Permit, and must submit a report 
demonstrating compliance with the minimum pollutant load reductions as an attachment 
to the first Annual MS4 Status Report that is due following completion of the 5th year of 
General Permit coverage.  For example, if DEP issues written approval of coverage to a 
permittee on June 1, 2018, the required pollutant load reductions must be implemented 
by June 1, 2023 and the final report documenting the BMPs that were implemented 
(with appropriate calculations) must be attached to the annual report that is due 
September 30, 2023.  In general, the same methodology used to calculate the existing 
pollutant loads should be used in the final report to demonstrate the reductions. If BMP 
effectiveness values are updated in DEP’s BMP Effectiveness Values document or 
Chesapeake Bay Program expert panel reports between the time the PRP is approved 
and the time the final report is developed, those updated effectiveness values may be 
used. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

 

MS4 Requirements Table 

 
 

Appendix A-1: Applicable portion of the MS4 Requirements Table (Municipal) 

Anticipated Obligations for Subsequent NPDES Permit Term  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

 

Public Participation 

 
 

Appendix B-1: Public Notice & Proof of Advertisement 

Appendix B-2: Public Comments Received (None Received) 

Appendix B-3: Public Meeting Agenda and Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







NOTICE OF PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD AND PUBLIC MEETING 

BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

 

For revisions to the NPDES Stormwater Discharges from MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan (PRP) for 

Borough of Perkasie. The PRP outlines the measures the Borough intends to implement to reduce 

certain pollutants discharged from the Borough’s Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4). The 

PRP includes a calculation of the existing loading of the pollutants of concern, a calculation of the 

minimum reduction required, and a selection of potential Best Management Practices (BMPs) intended 

to achieve the minimum required reduction. The PRP has been revised to update the location of 

streambank stabilization along Pleasant Spring Creek and to add a second underground sediment 

removal device location.  Borough is soliciting written comments on the revised PRP. Interested persons 

may submit written comments during the 30-day period of September 2 through October 2, 2025. The 

document may be reviewed during the comment period at Perkasie Borough Hall, 620 W. Chestnut St., 

Perkasie, PA 18944 weekdays from 9AM - 4PM or on the Borough website homepage 

http://perkasieborough.org/. Written and verbal comments will be accepted at a public meeting on 

September 15, 2025 (7PM) at Perkasie Borough Hall. Comments must be submitted in writing to the 

address above (Attn: Borough Manager) or by email to manager@perkasieborough.org and must 

include originator’s name and address. Comments submitted by facsimile will not be accepted. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C 
  

Maps 

 
Appendix C-1: Perkasie Borough Storm Sewer Collection Map (See attached) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

$1

$1

$1

"
"

"
"

"

"
"

"

" "

"
"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

""

"

"
"

"
"

"

"

"
""

"

"

" "

" "

"

"

" "

"
" "

"

"""

"
" "

"

""

"

"

"
"

"
" "

" "
""

"
""

"

"
"

"

""

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

""

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"

"

" "

"

"

"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"
"

"

"

"
"
"

"
"

" "

"" ""

""

""
"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"
"

"

"
"
" "

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"
""

"

"
"

"
"

"

"
"

" "
"

"

"

"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"
" "

"
"

"

" "

"
"

"
"

"
"

"

"
"

"

" "

"
"

"

"
" "

"

"

"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"
"

"

"

""

"

"

" "

""
"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

" "

"

"

"
"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"

" "

"
"

"
"

" "

"

"
" "

"
"""

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

" "
"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"
"
"

"

"

"

"

"
"

" "

"
"

"

"
""

""

"
"

"

"
"
"

"

"
"

""

"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"
"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

""
"

"
"

"

"

"
"

" """
"

"
"

"

"

"
"
" "

"
"

"
"

"

" ""

"

"
"

"
" " "

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

""

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
" "

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

""

"

" "
"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

""

"
"

"

"

""

""

" "

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"

"
"

""
"

"
""

" "

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"

""

"
"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"
"

"

"

" "

"

"

"

"
" "

"

"

"

""

"

"

" "
"

" "

" "
"

"

"

"

"

"

""

"

"

"
"
"

"
"

"
"

""

""

"
"

"

"

"

"

" "

"

"

"

"
"

" "

"

"

"

"

"
"

"
"

"

"
"

" "

""
" "

"
"

"

"

"
" "

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"
"

"

" "
""

"
"
"

"
" "

" "

"
"

"
"

"

"

"

""

"
"

"
"

""
"

"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"
"

"
"

" "

"
"

"

"
"

"

" "

"

"

"
""

"

"
"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"

" "

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"
"

"
" "

"
"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"
"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"
" ""

""

"

"

"

""

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"
"

"

" "
"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"
"

"
" "

" "
"

" "
" "

"

""

" "

"

""

"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"
"

" " "

"

"
"
"

"

"

"

"

""

"
"

"

"
"

"

""

"
"

"

"

"
"
"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

""
"

"
"

""
" "

"

"

"

"
"

" ""

"
"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"

"
""

"

"

"

"

"

"
" "

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

" " "

"

" "

"

"

"

""

" "

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

" "

"

" "
"
"

"
"

"

"

" "

"

"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"
"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"
"

"

"

_̂̂_

_̂ _̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂̂_

_̂

_̂

_̂ _̂

_̂

_̂

_̂_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*
#*

#* #*

#*

#*

BLO
OMING GLE

N DR

SHADYWOOD PL

MEADOW DR

HIGHLAND CTOLD POST RD

HIGHLAND DR

HIGHWOOD CT

SHADYWOOD DR

CREEK  VIEW  DR

PE
NNY L

A

GRANDVIEW AVE

POPLAR ST

NEIGHBOR'S WAY

BROWN STFA
IRMOUNT S

T

GREEN ST

BUTTO
N W

OOD ST

W. C
ALLO

WHILL
 ST

MARSHALL ST

RACE ST

N. 8TH ST
W. CALLOWHILL ST

VINE ST
N. 10TH ST

S 7TH ST

PENNY LA

W. SPRUCE ST

RACE ST

RACE ST

VINE ST
N. 5TH ST

HUNTERS RUN

CHELSEA CT

WALTHAM LA

AMHERST CIR

DORCHESTER LA

N. 3RD ST

N.   4TH ST

ARCH ST

W. M
ARKET

 ST

N. 6TH ST

N. 7TH ST

ARCH ST

N. 10TH ST RIDGE AVE

N. RIDGE RD

BENNER AVE

MEADOW LA

E. M
ARKET S

T

S 6TH ST

CHESTN
UT  C

T

BRIDGE ST

KENT L
A

N. MAIN ST

COVENTRY WAY

WALKER WAY

BRAMBLE
 LA

STRAWBERRY LA

E. C
ALLO

WHILL
 ST

SOUDER LA

STRASSBURGER RD

STONYCREST DR

STONY CREST CT

MILLIKEN CT

DILL AVE

VIRGINIA AVE

E. 
CHES

TN
UT S

T

SP
RU

CE
 ST

PA
RK A

VE

GRANDVIEW AVE
SUMMIT AVE

SP
RING LA

CLOVER LA

FERN DR

E. S
PR

UCE ST
PL

EA
SA

NT
 R

UN
 PL

.

LO
MBARD ST

NOB HILL D
R

HYDE LA

N. U
NION ST

SPRING CT

HAMPTON CIR

COUNTR
Y

PO
IN

T
CIRHILL

CREST R
D

HAV
EN

 CT (
PV

T)

EAST R
IDGE AV

E

CONSTITUTION AVE

S. 4TH ST

ARTHUR AVE

ELM AVE

INDEPENDENCE CT

HICKORY DR

CEDAR RIDGE CT

ARBOR BLV
D

LAUREL LN

PIN
 OAK L

N

CONNOR LN

JU
LIA

NA WAY

DANIEL
LA

 CIR

HI
DD

EN
 M

EA
DO

W
 D

R

S. 5TH STOAK AVE

CEDAR AVE

S. 6TH ST

S 7TH ST

SOUTH ST

S. 9TH ST
RUSTIC DR

10TH ST

CONCORD PL

REVERE WAY

LEXINGTON WAY
JEFFERSON DR

S. 12TH ST PARKRIDGE DR

PARKRIDGE CT

NORTH LA

S. RIDGE RD

W. PARK AVE

TU
NNEL R

D

PINE ST

S. 8TH ST

CHESTNUT ST

S. 8TH ST

PENN ALLEY

W. CHESTNUT ST

W. WALNUT ST

W. PA
RK AV

E

S. 3RD ST

S. 4TH ST

S. 5TH ST

S. 2ND ST

S. 9TH ST

POPLA
R ST

N 7TH ST

OLD POST CT

VINE ST

N. RIDGE RD

S. 12TH ST

N. 8TH ST

WYCKFORD WAY

WYCKFORD

BRANFO
RD TE

R

ESSEX CT

DR

S. U
NION ST

E. 
WAL

NU
T S

T SUGARBUSH DR

CHESTNUT CT

FAIRVIEW AVE

PERKASIE BOROUGH

SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH

WEST ROCKHILL
TOWNSHIP

HILLTOWN TOWNSHIP

EAST ROCKHILL TOWNSHIP

E.B.P.-6.2

E.B.P.-6

EAST BRANCH

PERKIOMEN

CREEK

E.B
.P.-

5

E.B.P.-
4

PL
EA

SA
NT

 SP
RIN

G C
RE

EK

P.S.C.-1

E.B
.P.

-2

E.B
.P.

-2

E.B.P.-3

E.B.P.-3.3

E.B
.P.

-3
E.B

.P.-
6.1

E.B.P.-3.1

E.B.P.-3.2

E.B
.P.

-1

E.B.P.-7

EBP-

EBP-L

EBP-K

EBP-E

EBP-F

EBP-G

EBP-6C

EBP-7A

EBP 6A

EBP 6B

EBP 3G

EBP 3D

EBP 3A

EBP-6.2B
EBP-6.2C

EBP-6.1C

EBP 6.2DEBP-6.2A

EBP 6.1A EBP 6.1B

EBP-3.1D
EBP-3.1C

EBP-7B and 7C

EBP-2-I
EBP-2-H

H-PSC-1-A

H-EBP-4-A

485'

490'

495'

475'

500'

505'

460'

455'

515'

525'

445'

440'

410'

415'

425'

405'

435'
480'

450'

510'

465'

470'

520'

530'

540'

375'

365'

535'

380'

305'

550'

390'

36
0'

325
'

560'

335'

565'

320'

570'

34
5'

35
0'

330'

575'

37
0'

555'

420' 545'

34
0'

300'

385'

310'

355'

315
'

430'

395'

400'

380'

540'

350'

370'

405'

31
5'

490'

395'

305'

360'

385'

390'

360'

345
'

440'

340'

460'

340'

315'

330'

430'400'

390'

400' 37
5'

325'

35
0'

355
'

315'

350'

405'

305'

385'

35
0'

30
5'

365'

360
'

390'

500'

325
'

320'

360'
32

0'

315'

335'

335'

390'

495'

325'

455'

545'

380'

38
0'

340'

300'

36
0'

360'

325'

310'

415'

470'

35
0'

345
'

355'

395'

320
'

345'

420'

425'

540'

555'

465'

33
5'

380'

340'

305'

390'

375'

400'

375'

345'

395'

320' 420'

430'

330'

540'

435'

34
0'

340'

310
'

345
'

340'

380'

365'

370'

345'

365'

320
'

300'

33
5'

515'

485'

410'

370'

345'

35
0'

355'

36
0'

375'

38
5'

310'

485'

310'

365'
310'

330
'

315'

350'

375'

40
0'

34
5'

335'

355'

535'

405'

335'

475'

410'

425'

450'

32
5'

405'

390'

310'

445'

370'

535'

505'

395'

315'

37
0'

525'

400'

320'

370'

355'

530'

330'

330'

385'

305'

365'

355'

310'

365'

310'

31
0'

410'

360'

330'

520'

510'

360'

325'

390'

360'

385'

415'

405'

36
5'

390'

320'

335'

340'

375'

535'

305'

325'

37
0'

480'

340'

355
'

PSC-P

PSC-Q

EBP-P

PSC-L
PSC-M

PSC-N

EBP-M

EBP-0
EBP-N

PSC-0

EBP-D

EBP-A

EBP-C

EBP-B

EBP-E

EBP-F

EBP-G

EBP-K

EBP-L

EBP-H

EBP-J

EBP-I

PSC-K

PSC-H
PSC-G

PSC-J

PSC-I

PSC-C

PSC-F

PSC-D

PSC-E

PSC-B PSC-A

EBP-4-D

EBP-7-C
EBP-7-D

EBP-6-C

EBP-6-D

PSC-1-C

PSC-1-D

EBP-2-F

EBP-2-G

EBP-3-H

EBP-3-I

EBP-3-G

EBP-3-F

EBP-3-D
EBP-3-E
EBP-3-C

EBP-3-B

EBP-3-A

EBP-3-J

EBP-5-A

EBP-6-A

EBP-6-B

EBP-7-A

EBP-7-B

EBP-4-A

EBP-4-B

PSC-1-A

EBP-2-E

EBP-1-B

EBP-1-A

EBP-2-A

EBP-1-C

EBP-1-D

EBP-2-B

EBP-2-CEBP-2-D

EBP-6.1-C

EBP-6.2-D

EBP-3.3-B

EBP-3.3-C

EBP-3.1-B

EBP-3.1-A

EBP-3.2-A

EBP-3.3-A

EBP-6.1-A

EBP-6.2-A

EBP-3.1-C

EBP-3.1-E

EBP-6.2-C

EBP-6.2-B

GILMORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.
65 E. Butler Avenue, Suite 100,  New Britain,  PA  18901

215-345-4330

©

0 790 1,580395
Feet

1 inch = 400 feetCREATED : SEPTEMBER 26, 2025REVISION
NO. DATE REVISION

Perkasie Borough
Bucks County, Pennsylvania

STORM SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM MAP
ENGINEERING & CONSULTING SERVICES

1 12/23/14 MINOR REVISIONS
2 11/04/15 ROAD PROGRAM AND SUBDIVISION UPDATES
3 12/14/15 MINOR REVISIONS FROM FIELD COLLECTION
4 6/2/17 MINOR REVISIONS FROM FIELD COLLECTION

NOTE:
- PERKASIE BOROUGH IS ENTIRELY WITHIN THE URBANIZED AREA BOUNDARY.

EPB-H

!( STORM CONNECTION TO UPSTREAM/DOWNSTREAM STORM SEWER

EXISTING PRIVATE DETENTION BASIN

EXISTING SUB-SURFACE STREAM  (APPROX. LOCATION)

E.B.P.-1

EXISTING OUTFALL LOCATION AND IDENTIFICATION
!( EXISTING MANHOLE
") EXISTING INLET

EXISTING STREAM (APPROX. LOCATION)

EXISTING PRIVATE UNDERGROUND DETENTION BASIN

EAST BRANCH PERKIOMEN CREEK TRIBUTARY IDENTIFYING NUMBER
P.S.C.-1 PLEASANT SPRING CREEK TRIBUTARY IDENTIFYING NUMBER

- ORIGINAL OUTFALL MAP CREATED  BY SCHOOR DEPALMA AND REVISED BY 
  BOUCHER & JAMES, INC., AND CKS ENGINEERS, INC.

BOROUGH ROAD
NON-BOROUGH ROAD

EXISTING BOROUGH MAINTAINED DETENTION BASIN

EXISTING HEADWALL LOCATION AND IDENTIFICATION
H-PSC-1

EXISTING STORM SEWER PIPE

EXISTING DITCH  (APPROX. LOCATION)

Spruce St Townhouses
Load Reduction - BMP Installed
Parsed - Drains to Non-Impaired Waterbody
Parsed - State Road Drainage Area
Parsed - NPDES Permit
Parsed - Direct Discharge Waterbody
Spruce 1
Spruce 2
Spruce 3
Streambank Restoration Area

#*      ENDWALL
_̂      MS4 OUTFALL
!A      PRIVATE BMP

Legend

5 9/26/25 PRIVATE BMP LOCATIONS ADDED



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix D  

 

Existing Loading  

for Pollutants of Concern 

 
Appendix D-1:  EMC Table 

Appendix D-2:  ROW Calculations 

Appendix D-3:  Non-Parsed Area Calculations 

Appendix D-4:  Total Existing Load & Required Reduction Calculation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix E 

  

Loading Reduction Calculations and O&M 

 
Appendix E-1:  Spruce Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP 

Appendix E-2:  Arch Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Appendix E-1: Spruce Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



Page 1 of 11 

SECTION _ 

SPECIFICATION FOR TERRE KLEEN™  
HYDRODYNAMIC SEPARATOR 
US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2 

BY 
TERRE HILL STORMWATER SYSTEMS, Division of Terre Hill Concrete products

485 WEAVERLAND VALLEY ROAD 
TERRE HILL, PA 17581 

TEL.: (717) 445-3100          FAX: (717) 445-0242. 
www.terrestorm.com 

Verify latest version of specifications 

PART 1-GENERAL 

1.1 DESCRIPTION 

A. This work shall consist of manufacturing, delivering to the job site
and installing a Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2);
an inclined plate cell hydrodynamic separator (containing the
specified number of inclined plates for each unit) at each location
as shown on the contract plans. The unit shall treat all stormwater
without loss of floatable matter, such as trash, debris, litter and oil
and grease captured in the oil booms; there shall be no scour of
settled sediment from the baffled sediment hopper located under
the inclined plates in the grit chamber. External by-pass structures
are not allowed. Each unit has a primary chamber and grit
chamber. The primary chamber separates oil, grease and floatable
debris contained in a fully baffled area to prevent loss or re-
suspension of captured oil, grease, and floatable trash and debris
including captured sediment. This chamber is followed by an
inclined plate sedimentation unit placed above a protected
sediment collection hopper in a grit chamber into which the
stormwater flows after passing through a nutrient screen in the
divider wall between the two chambers. The grit chamber hopper
shall contain a sediment sludge stainless steel spray assembly
located in the grit chamber to facilitate clean out and maintenance
of the unit that shall be pressurized with water causing dislodging

Appendix E-1: Spruce Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



Page 2 of 11 

of the settled sludge below the inclined plate settler for drainage 
towards the vacuum suction points. 

B. The unit shall contain an internal flow through duct located 
between the primary chamber and the grit chamber. Flows in 
excess of the design flow shall pass through the unit through the 
internal flow through duct.  

C. This product is produced by Terre Hill Concrete Products under 
the name “Terre Kleen™”.  All rights are reserved.(US Patent 
No. 6,676,832 B2) 

D. The Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) inclined 
plate separator shall operate based on the hydrostatic pressure 
differential between the inlet and outlet pipe. The flow is split in 
proportion to the number of inclined plate cells. The cells treat the 
water in parallel and combine the flow at the overflow weir. The 
inclined plate cell surfaces facilitate sliding of the sediment to the 
hopper below where it is protected from scour from subsequent 
flows. The design of the device shall prevent loss of captured 
pollutants including oil, grease, trash, debris, and sediment 
through scouring or other causes during all flows and conditions. 
The nutrient screen shall be positioned to allow passage of all 
flows without allowing loss of captured pollutants.  

E. The internal flow through duct provides additional flow area in 
addition to the inclined plate cells. All flows pass through the 
primary chamber so as to capture oil grease and floatable trash 
and debris and to allow by-pass of the excess flows only in the 
internal flow through duct while requiring design flows to continue 
to be treated in both the primary and the sedimentation grit 
chamber. The internal by-pass shall not allow loss of any captured 
pollutants during excess flows. 

F. Both the primary and the grit chambers shall be accessible 
through removable covers at grade for the removal of floatable 
material, water and the settled solids and floating particulates 
using a standard vacuum truck. No confined space entry shall be 
required for removal of captured pollutants. 

G. The grit chamber hopper shall contain a sediment sludge stainless 
steel spray assembly located in the grit chamber to facilitate clean 
out and maintenance of the unit that shall be pressurized with 
water causing dislodging of the settled sludge below the inclined 
plate settler for drainage towards the vacuum suction points. 

H. Captured sediment storage shall be not less than 0.7 Ft³/Ft2 of 
settling area in the Terre Kleen. 

 



Page 3 of 11 

I. Oil Storage shall be not less than 1.5 gallons/Ft2 in the in the Terre 
Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) 

 
 
1.2 SUBMITTALS 
 

A. Shop drawings shall be submitted as described in Division 1 – 
General Requirements. 

 
B. Certifications by a Professional Engineer licensed in the state of 

installation shall be submitted that the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent 
No. US 6,676,832 B2) inclined plate hydrodynamic separator 
structure conforms to the standards listed in this Specification. 

 
 
1.3 REFERENCES 
 

A. ASTM International ( ASTM ): 
A-48 Specification for Gray Iron Castings 
C-32 Specification for Sewer and Manhole Brick 
C-270 Specification for Mortar for Unit Masonry 
C-478 Specification for Precast Reinforced Concrete Manhole 
Sections 
C-913 Standard Specification for Precast Concrete Water and 

Wastewater Structures 
US Patent No. US 6676832 B2; Surface water purifying catch 

basin. 
 

B. Federal Specifications ( FS ): 
FS-SS-S-210 Sealing Compound, Preformed Plastic for 

Expansion Joints and Pipe Joints 
 
 
1.4 MANUFACTURERS 
 

A. The products furnished by named manufacturers are specified as 
a standard of quality and performance. 

 
B. The manufacture of the concrete structure shall be performed at a 

precast production facility certified by the National Precast 
Concrete Association (NPCA). 

 



Page 4 of 11 

C. The manufacturer of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 
6,676,832 B2) shall be licensed to produce and or sell the entire 
device or any components thereof by Terre Hill Concrete Products 
of Terre Hill Pennsylvania 717-445-3100. 

 
PART 2- PRODUCTS 
 
2.1 MATERIALS AND DESIGN 
 

A. The reinforced concrete vault structure shall be designed for HS-
25 traffic loading, and existing soil pressure, ground water 
pressure and buoyancy. The materials and structural design shall 
be per ASTM C-478 and ASTM C-913. The concrete shall have a 
minimum compressive strength of 5000 psi. 

 
B. The access cover shall be designed for HS-25 traffic loading and 

shall provide a minimum of 27 1/2 inches clear opening. Manhole 
frame and cover shall be East Jordan or Quirin manufactured from 
gray iron conforming to ASTM A-48 Class 35B. The cover shall 
contain the words “Stormwater Treatment System” and the Terre 
Kleen™ logo as approved by Terre Hill Concrete Products. 

 
C. Butyl mastic sealant for joints shall conform to ASTM C-990 and 

Federal Specifications ( FSFS-SS-S-210 Sealing Compound, 
Preformed Plastic for Expansion Joints and Pipe Joints 

 
D. Pipe openings shall be sized to accept pipes of the specified sizes 

and shall be sealed with hydraulic cement conforming to ASTM C- 
595M. 

 
E. The metal components of the inclined cell separator, baffle wall 

Aluminum Alloy 5052 (UNS # A95052) or equal. 
 

F. The hinge pins of the inclined cell separator shall be manufactured 
from stainless steel AISI Type 304L (UNS # S30403). 

 
G. All fasteners used in combination or connecting the inclined cell 

separator to the concrete structure shall be made from stainless 
steel AISI 316 (UNS # 31600) and the threads shall be properly 
lubricated with Permatex anti-seize Item 80078 lubricant or equal.  
All surfaces of aluminum components that are to be embedded or 
in contact with fresh, unhydrated concrete shall be coated with 



Page 5 of 11 

Koppers Bitumastic 300M. 
 

H. Per 57 Ft2 of sedimentation area, four (4) Ø 2 ¼” x 12” long 
sorbent booms with an absorption capacity of ¼ gallon per lineal 
foot shall be placed in the primary chamber for the absorption of 
gasoline; diesel fuel, lube oil, jet fuel, transformer oils, chlorinated 
solvents, aromatic solvents, hydraulic oils, light crude. The sorbent 
boom or Rubberizer® boom shall be manufactured by Haz-Mat 
Response Technologies Inc. or approved equal. 

 
2.2 PERFORMANCE 
 

A. The inlet pipe shall discharge the storm water into the primary 
chamber. In the primary chamber, the separator shall facilitate the 
floatation of liquids and particles lighter than the density of water.  
Floatable solids, greater than 19mm [3/4”], and liquids shall be 
retained in the primary chamber, and shall not be subject to loss 
through re-suspension or any other cause. Emulsified oils are not 
captured and are not part of the floatable mass. 

 
B. The heavy fraction of the solids shall settle in the bottom of the 

primary chamber. 
 

C. Particles in the range of 50 to 500 micro meters (µM) kept in 
suspension due to turbulence in the primary chamber shall pass 
through a nutrient screen with a maximum screen opening of 
16mm x 16mm [5/8”x 5/8”] and enter the grit chamber (sediment 
grit chamber) through a parallelogram port at the bottom of the 
inclined cell walls. This opening shall be approximately mid-
elevation between the inlet pipe invert and the vault invert. 

 
D. The solids and water between the inclined cell plate walls shall 

travel in an inclined direction toward the overflow weir at the top of 
the inclined plate cell. During this process, the solids shall settle 
and slide down towards the bottom of each plate cell and drop into 
the receiving hopper of the sedimentation grit chamber. The water 
shall discharge at the top of the cell, pass across a V-notch weir 
and cascade onto a baffle plate and drain to the effluent outlet 
pipe. 

 
E. The particles that shall be removed in the grit chamber shall be 

silt, fine sand, and sand. The typical density of these particles is 



Page 6 of 11 

2400 kg/M3 [150lbs/ft3], and their size between 2 microns and 
1000 microns with a d50= 70 Micron. The projected sedimentation 
surface area of the grit chamber shall be the cumulative horizontal 
projection of the sedimentation cell-floors that make up the 
sedimentation grit chamber. The total projected sedimentation 
surface area of the sedimentation cells, contained within the total 
structure footprint shall not be less than as follows: 

  
 Model     Structure Size  Sedimentation Surface Area 
 
1. Terre Kleen 09          4’6” x 7’0”     (31.50 ft²)               57 ft² 
2. Terre Kleen 18          6’6” x 7’0”     (45.50 ft²)                     115 ft² 
3. Terre Kleen 27          8’6” x 7’0”     (59.50 ft²)                     172 ft² 
4. Terre Kleen 36        10’6” x 7’0”     (73.50 ft²)                     230 ft² 
5. Terre Kleen 45        12’6” x 7’0”     (87.50 ft²)                     288 ft² 
6. Terre Kleen 54        14’6” x 7’0”   (101.50 ft²)                     345 ft² 
7. Terre Kleen 63        16’6” x 7’0”   (115.50 ft²)                     403 ft² 
 
 

F. The design flow in M3/sec [GPM or CFS] for each Terre Kleen™ 
(US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) inclined plate hydrodynamic 
separator water quality treatment device shall be as noted on the 
drawings. 

 
PART 3-INSTALLATION 
 
3.1 INCLINED PLATE SEPARATOR FABRICATION  
 

A. Fabrication of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 
B2) inclined plate hydrodynamic separator water quality device 
shall be in strict accordance with the design. 

 
B. The Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) inclined 

plate hydrodynamic separator water quality device shall be 
provided with mounting brackets for installation into the precast 
concrete structure with stainless steel mounting anchors. 

 
C. The Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) inclined 

plate hydrodynamic separator shall be provided with a flow 
channel on the effluent side of the settler and a clean-out opening 
next to the channel. 

 



Page 7 of 11 

D. The nutrient screen shall be placed as an extension of the baffle 
wall at the entrance to the parallelogram port in the divider wall. 

 
E. Certified welders experienced in the welding of specified thin 

metals shall place all welds. 
 

F. The fabricator shall remove shop soils, discoloration, and welding 
slag. 

 
3.2 PRECAST CONCRETE STRUCTURE 
 

A. The utility contractor installing the precast concrete structure shall 
be responsible installing the structure so as to stop the infiltration 
or loss of water into or out of the precast concrete structure. 

 
B. The precast concrete structure shall be installed level and plumb 

at the specified elevation shown on the signed, approved plans, on 
a compacted stone sub base 150mm [6”] thick. 

 
C  Excavation and backfill shall be as specified in the signed, 

approved plans. 
 
 
3.3 MANUFACTURER INSTALLATION TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
 

A At the time and place of installation of any Terre Kleen™ (US 
Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) the manufacturer, Terre Hill 
Concrete Products will provide a Product Liaison on site to offer 
technical assistance to the installation contractor to assure proper 
installation of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 
B2) in accordance with the signed, approved plans. 

 
 

3.4 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
 
A The maintenance of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 

6,676,832 B2) is the responsibility of the Owner. Each site has 
unique site conditions.  It is the responsibility of the Owner to 
establish a schedule according to the conditions of the specific 
Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) location. Failure 
to clean the sediment from the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 
6,676,832 B2) and to replace oil absorption booms will cause the 



Page 8 of 11 

Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) to not maintain 
its design performance capabilities.  It is strongly recommended 
that the Owner follow the prescribe maintenance specifications 
and procedures published by Terre Hill Concrete Products and 
copy thereof given to the installation contractor for delivery to the 
Owner.(A copy of the Maintenance Procedures are attached 
hereto and made a part hereof.) 

 
PART 4 Maintenance Procedures for Terre Kleen™ 
 
4.1 General 

 
A Inspection and maintenance must be performed on a regular 

basis, All captured pollutants must be removed from the Terre 
Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2). During the first year 
after installation inspections should be performed every three (3) 
months to determine the type and amount of pollutants in the 
Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2). Site conditions 
and weather will influence the rate of pollutant capture. A schedule 
of regular maintenance can then be established based upon the 
quarterly inspections. 

 
4.2 Pollutant Removal 

A Access to both the primary and grit chambers is provided by 
manhole openings. The gross pollutants such as litter and the oil 
absorption booms should be removed first. A vacuum truck or 
similar equipment is then utilized to remove the water and the 
sediment. Disposal of all of the removed pollutants should be 
properly documented in accordance with all applicable regulations. 
Removal may be done anytime after a rain event. 

 At all times keep sparks and flames away from the Terre Kleen™ 
(US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) as it may contain flammable 
material. 

 The Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) is designed 
for inspection and cleaning from grade. If “confined entry” is 
desired, trained and certified personnel using OSHA regulation 
equipment is required. 

 Manhole covers and inlet grates must be put back securely to the 
frames after inspection or maintenance. 

 
 

4.3 Documentation 



Page 9 of 11 

A Proper documentation should include: 
a) dates and results of each inspection; 
b) proposed and installed repairs, renovations, improvements; 
c) type and amount of captured pollutants; 
d) disposal of pollutants; 
e) preparation and submittal of reports; 
f) document nutrient and sediment trading credits. 
 

4.4 Measurement 
A A carefully lowered stadia rod or similar instrument may be used to 

determine amount of captured sediment. The sludge dispersion 
manifold can assist in the removal of sediment. Manifold pipes 
mounted to the floor of the grit chamber connect to a hose that 
leads to the grade level manhole. The hose is pressurized by the 
vacuum truck’s spray nozzle. The pressurized manifold sprays 
water through small horizontal holes in the manifold pipes, which 
liquefies and disperses the sludge blanket for removal by the 
suction nozzle. 

 
5.0 Additional Requirements 
 A. Unit fabrication and field installation shall be in accordance with 
manufacturer’s requirements unless directed otherwise by the county 
Engineer. 
 B. The units that are located in the street or highway right of way 
shall be able to support a HS-25 loading without structural failure. Load 
carrying ability of the unit shall be verified by signed and sealed 
calculations prepared by an engineered licensed in New Jersey. 
Calculations shall be submitted for review and approved with the 
appropriate shop drawings for each unit. 
 C. Each unit must meet the dimensional limitations and requirements 
shown on the plans including but not limited to limit of disturbance, cover to 
finished grade, invert-in and invert-out. 
 D. Units must be able to accept inlet castings as wellas  manhole rim 
and cover without any loss of performance of the unit. 
 E. It is anticipated that the units will be installed in areas of high 
ground water. In addition to the dewatering operations described 
elsewhere, the Contractor shall provide buoyancy calculations indicating a 
safety factor of two (2) against flotation. Buoyancy calculations shall be 
performed for the situation that the dewatering operation has failed and the 
unit has not been backfilled as of yet. Calculations shall be prepared and 
signed and sealed by an Engineer licensed in New Jersey. 
 F. In areas of high ground water, compacted one inch (1”) diameter 



Page 10 of 11 

crushed stone shall be used as backfill to the top of the ground water table. 
 G. The Contractor shall submit for approval, shop drawings for the units and any 

pipe coupling device that may be used. 

 

 
6.0 LIMITED WARRANTY 

 Terre Hill Stormwater Systems provides the following Express 
Written Limited Warranty in lieu of any other warranty, whether oral , written , 
express, or implied. (the Warranty). All other warranties, representations, 
remedies, guarantees claims, or legal or equitable causes of action, in contract, 
tort or otherwise; including the Implied Warranties of Merchantability and Fitness 
for a Particular Purpose are excluded. 

  

1. This Warranty applies solely to the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 

6,676,832 B2) products manufactured by Terre Hill Stormwater 

Systems and sold to the original purchaser (the Purchaser) 

2. The structural integrity of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 

6,676,832 B2); when installed in accordance with Terre Hill 

Stormwater System’s written installation specifications, and in 

accordance with site conditions, requirements of all laws and 

regulations, are warranted to the Purchaser against defective 

materials and workmanship for four (4) years from the date of 

installation. 

3. Terre Hill Stormwater Systems agrees to provide the labor and 

material to remove the installed Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 

6,676,832 B2) and reinstall the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 

6,676,832 B2), upon satisfactory proof of a breach of this Warranty. 

4. Excluded from Warranty are claims resulting from or caused by 

damage; alteration; accident; misuse; abuse involving the Terre 

Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2), or negligence of the 

Purchaser or any third party. to the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. 

US 6,676,832 B2) 

5. Terre Hill Stormwater Systems sole liability to the Purchaser shall 

be as expressly set forth in this Warranty, whether the claim is 

based upon contract, tort, equity or any other legal or equitable 

theory. 

6. Under no circumstances shall Terre Hill Stormwater Systems be 



Page 11 of 11 

liable to Purchaser or any third party for product liability claims ; or 

the cost of goods or services related to the purchase or installation 

of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2). 

 

The Warranty is contingent upon verification of installation in strict 

accordance with the Terre Hill Stormwater Systems specifications, and use of the 

product strictly for the application specified. The construction plans for 

installation of the product shall be approved in writing by Terre Hill Stormwater 

Systems, and the construction installation plans shall be sealed by a professional 

engineer, licensed to perform civil engineering in the jurisdiction wherein the 

product will be installed. 

All conditions for product usage as specified by Terre Hill Stormwater 

Systems must be satisfied in order for any of the terms of the Warranty to be 

valid, in full or in part. 

The Warranty guarantees that any product of the Terre Hill Stormwater 

System will equal or exceed the Terre Hill Stormwater System written 

performance claim for stormwater treatment. 

This Warranty of Terre Hill Stormwater Systems does not extend to 

incidental, consequential, special, or indirect claims , expenses or damages. 

Terre Hill Stormwater Systems shall not be liable for penalties or liquidated 

damages, including loss of profits or production and overhead costs; or other 

loss or expense incurred by the Purchaser or any third party. 

The Warranty is limited to those claims filed in writing with Terre Hill 

Stormwater Systems, a Division of Terre Hill Concrete Products on or before four 

(4) years from the date of substantial completion of installation. The written claim 

shall specify and describe the alleged defect upon which the breach of Warranty 

is claimed in reasonable detail. 

The Warranty with all of its obligations, rights and limitations and protections 
shall apply to Terre Hill Concrete Products. 
 
       END OF SECTION 
 
 
TK Specs dated 09.26.12 



Spruce Street System Drainage Area

Street Name Section of Roadway ROW Width (Feet)

Length 

of Road 

(feet)

Width of 

Road 

(feet)

Width of 

Lawn 

(feet)

Area of 

Lawn (SF)

Area of 

Road (SF)

Lawn 

(mg/l)

Road 

(mg/l)

Load 

(lbs/year)

S. 6th Street Park Ave to Elm Ave 42 640 28 14 8,960 17,920 180 86 234

5th  Street Arthur Ave to Elm St 32 490 32 0 0 15,680 180 86 157

Arthur Avenue entire road 40 670 38 2 1,340 25,460 180 86 262

Park Avenue Railroad to 3rd St 32 880 32 0 0 28,160 180 86 281

2,680 130 10,300 87,220 934

Residential Analysis

Zone Building Coverage (%)

Approx. Lot 

Coverage (%)

Total 

Area 

(SF)

Total 

Area 

(Acres)

Rooftop 

(Acres)

Driveway 

(Acres)

Traffic 

Parking 

(Acres)

Planting 

Areas 

(Acres)

Lawns 

(Acres)

Ball Fields 

(Acres)

Total Load 

(lbs/year)

R-1A, R-1B, R-2, R-3 25 30 393782 9 2.25 0.45 0 2.25 4.05 0 1961

*Toatl Load values from NPDES Stormwater Discharges From MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan for Borough of Perkasie, as prepared by Gilmore & Associates, Inc. Dated September 2017

Page 1 of 1

Appendix E-1: Spruce Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



Appendix E-1: Spruce Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



Appendix E-2: Arch Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



Appendix E-2: Arch Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



Arch Street System Drainage Area

Street Name Section of Roadway ROW Width (Feet)

Length 

of Road 

(feet)

Width of 

Road 

(feet)

Width of 

Lawn 

(feet)

Area of 

Lawn (SF)

Area of 

Road (SF)

Lawn 

(mg/l)

Road 

(mg/l)

Load 

(lbs/year)

8th  Street Market St to Race St 34 1,120 26 8 8,960 29,120 180 86 346

Arch Street 8th St to 9th St 32 380 26 6 2,280 9,880 180 86 113

Race Street 8th St to 9th St 32 220 32 0 0 7,040 180 86 70

Race Street Ridge Ave to 9th St 38 700 30 8 5,600 21,000 180 86 244

Ridge Avenue entire road 34 500 28 6 3,000 14,000 180 86 158

Total 2,920 142 19,840 81,040 931

Residential Analysis

Zone Building Coverage (%)

Approx. Lot 

Coverage (%)

Total 

Area 

(SF)

Total 

Area 

(Acres)

Rooftop 

(Acres)

Driveway 

(Acres)

Traffic 

Parking 

(Acres)

Planting 

Areas 

(Acres)

Lawns 

(Acres)

Ball Fields 

(Acres)

Total Load 

(lbs/year)

R-1A, R-1B, R-2, R-3 25 30 570636 13 3.25 0.65 0 3.25 5.85 0 2833

*Toatl Load values from NPDES Stormwater Discharges From MS4 Pollutant Reduction Plan for Borough of Perkasie, as prepared by Gilmore & Associates, Inc. Dated September 2017

Page 1 of 1

Appendix E-2: Arch Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



January 30, 2023 

Hydro International, 94 Hutchins Drive, Portland ME 04102 
Tel: (207) 756-6200 Fax: (207) 756-6212 Web: www.hydro-int.com 

Hydro International  
94 Hutchins Dr.  
Portland, ME 04102 

RE:  Stormwater Treatment Device Submittal 
 8th Street Commons 
 TMP # 33-005-438; 33-005-456 & 33-005-458-001 

   North Eighth Street and Market Street 
 Perkasie Borough, Bucks Count PA 
 PROJECT # 1414 

Holmes Cunningham LLC 
409 E. Butler Ave, Unit 5 
Doylestown, PA 18901 

Kristin R. Holmes, P.E. 

This letter is from the team at Hydro International and Ferguson Waterworks regarding the shop 
drawing submittal on the referenced project.  Hydro International’s First Defense is being submitted as 
an equal to the specified Terre Kleen as shown on DRAINAGE & UTILITY PLAN site plan page 12 of 30 and 
detailed on page 24 of 30.  Both units are approved for 50% TSS removal through the regional third-
party agency NJCAT with reciprocity in Pennsylvania. 

The table below displays the product Maximum Treatment Flow Rate from the regional third party 
testing agency NJCAT, and the maximum treatment flow rates. 

Product *MTFR from 3rd Party NJCAT Peak Treatment 
Terre Kleen TK 36 4.37 cfs 37.9 cfs 
8' First Defense Optimum 7.23 cfs 50 cfs 

*Per Sizing Tables listed on following page

If we have assumed anything in error, we are available at the contact information below.  Thank you for 
the time and the ability to serve mutual clients. 

Regards. 

Nick Burns, EIT 
Mid Atlantic Regional Sales Manager 
703.424.3340  
nburns@hydro-int.com 

x

2/09/23 Douglas C. Rossino, PE

 

 
 APPROVED           FURNISHED AS CORRECTED 

 
 REJECTED           REVISE AND RESUBMIT            SUBMIT SPECIFIED ITEM 

 
This review was performed only for general conformance with the design concept of the 
design concept of the project and general conformance with the information given in the 
Contract Documents.  Modifications or comments made on the shop drawings during 
this review do not relieve contractor from compliance with the requirements of the plans 
and specifications.  Approval of a specific item does not include approval of the 
assembly of which the item is a component.  Contractor is responsible for:  dimensions 
to be confirmed and correlated at the jobsite; information that pertains solely to the 
fabrication processes or to the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and 
procedures of construction; coordination of the work of all trades; and for performing all 
work in a safe and satisfying manner. 
 

GILMORE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date_________________________   By_____________________________________ 

 

Appendix E-2: Arch Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



Page | 2 

Hydro International, 94 Hutchins Drive, Portland ME 04102 
Tel: (207) 756-6200 Fax: (207) 756-6212 Web: www.hydro-int.com 

Table 2. MTFR Terre Kleen 

https://nj.gov/dep/stormwater/pdf/Terre_Kleen-NJDEP%20Certification%202-17-2017.pdf  

https://nj.gov/dep/stormwater/pdf/First_Defense_Optimum_Vortex_Certification_20210719.pdf



SECTION A-A

SCALE 1:40

SECTION B-B

SCALE 1:40

PARTS LIST

TYPEDESCRIPTIONSIZE (in)QTYITEM

I.D. PRECAST MANHOLE9611

FRAME AND COVER (ROUND)3012

LEDGER SUPPORT13

HDPEOUTLET PIPE (BY OTHERS)3614

SEPARATION MODULE15

HDPEINLET PIPE (BY OTHERS)3616

HDPEINLET PIPE (BY OTHERS)2417

B

B

WEIGHT:

SHEET SIZE:

B

SHEET:

1 OF 1 

DRAWING NO.:

22_12_3003-8ftFDO-1

STOCK NUMBER:

1

hydro-int.com

©2023 HYDRO INTERNATIONAL

Rev:

-

Title

8-ft DIAMETER

FIRST DEFENSE OPTIMUM

FD-1

8TH STREET COMMONS - PERKASIE 

BOROUGH

PERKASIE BOROUGH, PA

DRAWN BY:

WCS

CHECKED BY:

EKM

APPROVED BY

DATE:

1/26/2023

SCALE:

1:40

PROJECTION

MATERIAL: 

IF IN DOUBT ASK

1. MANHOLE WALL AND SLAB

THICKNESS ARE NOT TO SCALE.

2. CONTACT HYDRO INTERNATIONAL

FOR A BOTTOM OF STRUCTURE

ELEVATION PRIOR TO SETTING FIRST

DEFENSE MANHOLE.

3. CONTRACTOR TO CONFIRM RIM,

PIPE INVERTS, PIPE DIA. AND PIPE

ORIENTATION PRIOR TO RELEASE OF

UNIT TO FABRICATION.

4. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE

FOR MATERIALS AND LABOR TO

BRING CASTINGS TO FINISHED

GRADE

5. ACTUAL DEPTH OF STRUCTURE

MAY VARY DEPENDING ON

AVAILABLE PRECAST FORMS.

CONTRACTOR TO MEASURE HEIGHT

OF STRUCTURE TO ENSURE THAT

DEPTH OF EXCAVATION IS CORRECT.

6. UNIT MUST BE INSTALLED ON A

LEVEL BASE. MANUFACTURER

RECOMMENDS A MINIMUM OF 6”

LEVEL ROCK BASE UNLESS

SPECIFIED.  CONTRACTOR IS

RESPONSIBLE TO VERIFY BASE

SPECIFICATIONS.

7. ALL PIPES SHALL BE SEALED

WATERTIGHT WITH A NON-SHRINK

GROUT OR BOOTS AND SHALL MEET

OR EXCEED REGIONAL PIPE

CONNECTION STANDARDS.

CAPACITIES: 

1. PEAK HYDRAULIC FLOW: 50.0 cfs (1415 l/s)

PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS:

A. The treatment system shall use an induced vortex to separate pollutants from stormwater runoff.

B. The treatment system shall fit within the limits of excavation (area and depth) as shown in the project

plans and will not exceed the dimensions for the design flow rates specified herein.

C. The treatment system shall convey the Peak On-line Flow Rates of up to 50 cfs without causing

upstream surcharge conditions.

D. The treatment system shall be capable of capturing and retaining fine silt and sand size particles.

E. Unit shall conform to HS20-44 load ratings.

0 in [.00 ft]SUMP: 

ELEV: 393.73ft

91 1/2 in [7.63 ft]INLET INVERTS: 

ELEV: 401.36ft

139 1/2 in [11.63 ft]T.O.S.: 

ELEV: 405.36ft

139 1/2 in [11.63 ft]RIM: 

ELEV: 405.36ft

88 3/4 in [7.40 ft]OUTLET INVERT: 

ELEV: 401.13ft

REVISION HISTORY

REV BY DESCRIPTION DATE

-

WCS FIRST RELEASE 1/26/2023

30 in [2.50 ft]BOTTOM OF INTERNALS: 

50 1/2 in [4.21 ft]PREASSEMBLY REFERENCE: 

Patent: www.hydro-int.com/patents

90°

170°

4

6

7

2

4

6

3

5

1

FABRICATE FLAT TOP &

TOP RISER W/ BLUNT JOINT

Appendix E-2: Arch Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



NEENAH FOUNDRY

Approved by Patrick J. Yebba
8/24/2022



Operation and Maintenance Manual

First Defense® High Capacity and First Defense®Optimum

Vortex Separator for Stormwater Treatment



First Defense® Operation and Maintenance Manual

Hydro International (Stormwater), 94 Hutchins Drive, Portland ME 04102
Tel: (207) 756-6200 Fax: (207) 756-6212 Web: www.hydro-int.com

Table of Contents
®

®

®

®

 The contents of this manual, including the graphics contained herein, are intended for the use of the recipient to whom the 

must not be used for any purpose other than that for which it is supplied and must not be reproduced, in whole or in part stored in a retrieval system or 

transmitted in any form or by any means without prior permission in writing from Hydro International plc. First Defense® is a trademarked hydrodynamic 

vortex separation device of Hydro International plc. A patent covering the First Defense® has been granted.

 Information and data contained in this manual is exclusively for the purpose of assisting in the operation and maintenance of Hydro 

International plc’s First Defense®. No warranty is given nor can liability be accepted for use of this information for any other purpose. Hydro International 

Page | 2



First Defense® Operation and Maintenance Manual

I. First Defense® by Hydro International

Page | 3

Introduction
The First Defense® is an enhanced vortex separator that 

total suspended solids (TSS), trash and hydrocarbons from 

pollutants. The First Defense® is available in several model 

The two product models described in this guide are the First 

Defense® High Capacity and the First Defense® Optimum; 

they are inspected and maintained identically.

Operation
The First Defense®

activating, has no moving parts, no external power requirement 

No manual procedures are required to operate the unit and 

maintenance is limited to monitoring accumulations of stored 
® has 

been designed to allow for easy and safe access for inspection, 

unit nor removal of the internal components is necessary for 

entry are avoided.   

Pollutant Capture and Retention
The internal components of the First Defense® have been 

are stored on the water surface in the inner volume (Fig.1).  

events. The sump of the First Defense® retains a standing 

water level between storm events. This ensures a quiescent 

and washout of pollutants captured during previous events.

Accessories such as oil absorbent pads are available for 

enhanced oil removal and storage.  Due to the separation 

• Inlet options include surface grate or multiple inlet pipes

•

  manholes

•

  time within the treatment chamber, enhancing pollutant settling 

•

Advantages

• Stormwater treatment at the point of entry into the drainage line

•

  with limited slope and depth of cover

•

  tied into an existing storm drain line

•

Applications

Oil
Max Oil

Storage Depth

Sediment 
Storage

Sediment

Fig.1 Pollutant storage volumes in the First Defense®.



First Defense® Operation and Maintenance Manual

Hydro International (Stormwater), 94 Hutchins Drive, Portland ME 04102
Tel: (207) 756-6200 Fax: (207) 756-6212 Web: www.hydro-int.com

7

The First Defense®

Page | 4

First Defense® Components  

5.   Outlet Pipe

12

3

4

5

6

7

8

(not pictured)

All First Defense® models include the internal components that are designed to remove and retain total suspended solids (TSS), 
®

III. Maintenance

First Defense®  

(ft / m) diameter

3 / 0.9

4 / 1.2

5 / 1.5

6 / 1.8

7 / 2.1

8 / 2.4

10 / 3.0

Fig. 2



First Defense® Operation and Maintenance ManualPage | 5

Overview
The First Defense®

®.  The First Defense® will capture 

and retain sediment and oil until the sediment and oil storage volumes are full to capacity.  When sediment and oil storage capacities 

are reached, the First Defense® will no longer be able to store removed sediment and oil.  

The First Defense®

entry into the First Defense®, nor do they require the internal components of the First Defense® to be removed.  In the case of 

include oil removal and/or sediment removal.       

Maintenance Equipment Considerations
The internal components of the First Defense® have a centrally located circular shaft through which the sediment storage sump can 

Determining Your Maintenance Schedule

® can be 

used to determine the level of accumulated solids stored in the sump.  This information can be recorded in the maintenance log (see 

page 9) to establish a routine maintenance schedule.  

® typically takes less than 30 minutes and 

removes a combined water/oil volume of about 765 gallons. 

Fig.3 The central opening to the sump of the First Defense®is 15 inches in diameter. 



First Defense® Operation and Maintenance Manual

Hydro International (Stormwater), 94 Hutchins Drive, Portland ME 04102
Tel: (207) 756-6200 Fax: (207) 756-6212 Web: www.hydro-int.com

Inspection Procedures
1.  Set up any necessary safety equipment around  the access

     port or grate of the First Defense® as stipulated  by                

     local ordinances.   Safety equipment should notify passing                 

2.  Remove the grate or lid to the manhole. 

3.  Without entering the vessel, look down into the chamber to 

     inspect the inside.  Make note of any irregularities.  Fig.4 

     shows the standing water level that should be observed.

4.  Without entering the vessel, use the pole with the skimmer net 

     and water surface.   

5.  ®, measure 

     the depth of sediment that has collected in the sump of the 

     vessel. 

6.  On the Maintenance Log (see page 9), record the date, unit 

     removed, and the depth of sediment measured.  Also note

     any apparent irregularities such as damaged components or

     blockages.

7.  Securely replace the grate or lid.  

8.  Take down safety equipment.

9.  Notify Hydro International of any irregularities noted during 

     inspection.

Floatables and Sediment Clean Out 

Floatables and loose debris can also be netted with a skimmer 

and pole.  The access port located at the top of the manhole 

provides unobstructed access for a vactor hose to be lowered to 

the base of the sump.  

Scheduling
•  Floatables and sump clean out are typically conducted once 

    a year during any season.

•  Floatables and sump clean out should occur as soon as 

    possible following a spill in the contributing drainage area.

Recommended Equipment
•  

•  Crow bar or other tool to remove grate or lid

•  

•  ®)

•  

•  First Defense® Maintenance Log

Fig.4 Floatables are removed with a vactor hose

Page | 6



First Defense® Operation and Maintenance Manual

Floatables and Sediment Clean Out Procedures
1.  Set up any necessary safety equipment around  the access

     port or grate of the First Defense® as stipulated by

     local ordinances. Safety equipment should notify passing

2.  Remove the grate or lid to the manhole.

3.  Without entering the vessel, look down into the chamber to 

     inspect the inside.  Make note of any irregularities.

4. 

     with the vactor hose or with the skimmer or net

5.  ®, measure 

     the depth of sediment that has collected in the sump of the 

     vessel and record it in the Maintenance Log (page 9).  

6.  

     to the base of the sump.  Vactor out the sediment and gross 

7.  Retract the vactor hose from the vessel.  

8.  On the Maintenance Log provided by Hydro International, 

     and gross debris removed, and the depth of sediment 

     measured.  Also note any apparent irregularities such as 

     damaged components, blockages, or irregularly high or low 

     water levels.

9.  Securely replace the grate or lid.  

Activity                                Frequency
Inspection

Oil and Floatables 
Removal

Sediment Removal

Maintenance at a Glance

NOTE: For most clean outs the entire volume of liquid does not need to be removed from the manhole. Only remove the 

Page | 7



First Defense® Installation Log

HYDRO INTERNATIONAL REFERENCE NUMBER:

SITE NAME:

SITE LOCATION:

OWNER:            CONTRACTOR:

CONTACT NAME:          CONTACT NAME:

COMPANY NAME:          COMPANY NAME:

ADDRESS:           ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:           TELEPHONE:

FAX:            FAX:

 (Stormwater), 94 Hutchins Drive, Portland ME 04102



First Defense® Inspection and Maintenance Log

Initials Depth of
Floatables 
and Oils

Sediment 
Depth 

Measured

Volume of 
Sediment 
Removed

Site Activity and 
Comments

Date

 (Stormwater), 94 Hutchins Drive, Portland ME 04102



First Defense® Operation and Maintenance Manual

Hydro International (Stormwater), 94 Hutchins Drive, Portland ME 04102
Tel: (207) 756-6200 Fax: (207) 756-6212 Web: www.hydro-int.com



First Defense® Operation and Maintenance Manual
Notes



Stormwater Solutions
94 Hutchins Drive

Portland, ME 04102

Turning Water Around...®

FD_O+M_K_2105



 

 

PADEP WORKSHEETS 11, 12, 13 

Worksheet 11: BMPs for Pollution Prevention 

        See: pg. 7, Section D, #4 for BMP descriptions 

 RC  +  VC  +  WQ 

   Terre Box:   Retention                   

 Detention 

   Underground Detention 

      Terre Arch:  Subsurface Infiltration Bed 

   Infiltration Basin 

 WQ   

                 Terre Kleen: Oil/Grit Separator 

    Terre Bio Retention Garden 

   Terre Urban Protector 

Worksheet 12: WQ Analysis: Pollutant Loading 

Worksheet 13: BMP Pollutant Reduction 

Terre Box: RC-VC          

Terre Arch: RC-VC-WQ: (TSS-TP-Metals) 

    Terre Kleen: WQ: Oil, Grease, Trash, Vegetation: (95%) 

              Nitrogen (50%): via captured vegetation 

                   Phosphorus (50%): attached to TSS + captured vegetation  

              Metals (50%): attached to TSS 

              TSS: (80%) net weighted annual removal 

    Terre Bio Retention Garden (Tree Filter): WQ: 

               Phosphorus:  73.74% 

               Nitrogen:        68.43% 

               Metals:            81.83% 

                             TSS:                  85.43% 

Appendix E-2: Arch Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



Page 1 of 11 

 
SECTION _  

 
SPECIFICATION FOR TERRE KLEEN™  

HYDRODYNAMIC SEPARATOR 
US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2 

BY 
TERRE HILL STORMWATER SYSTEMS, Division of Terre Hill Concrete products 

485 WEAVERLAND VALLEY ROAD 
TERRE HILL, PA 17581 

TEL.: (717) 445-3100          FAX: (717) 445-0242. 
www.terrestorm.com 

 
Verify latest version of specifications 

 
 
PART 1-GENERAL 
 
1.1 DESCRIPTION 
 
 

A. This work shall consist of manufacturing, delivering to the job site 
and installing a Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2);  
an inclined plate cell hydrodynamic separator (containing the 
specified number of inclined plates for each unit) at each location 
as shown on the contract plans. The unit shall treat all stormwater 
without loss of floatable matter, such as trash, debris, litter and oil 
and grease captured in the oil booms; there shall be no scour of 
settled sediment from the baffled sediment hopper located under 
the inclined plates in the grit chamber. External by-pass structures 
are not allowed. Each unit has a primary chamber and grit 
chamber. The primary chamber separates oil, grease and floatable 
debris contained in a fully baffled area to prevent loss or re-
suspension of captured oil, grease, and floatable trash and debris 
including captured sediment. This chamber is followed by an 
inclined plate sedimentation unit placed above a protected 
sediment collection hopper in a grit chamber into which the 
stormwater flows after passing through a nutrient screen in the 
divider wall between the two chambers. The grit chamber hopper 
shall contain a sediment sludge stainless steel spray assembly 
located in the grit chamber to facilitate clean out and maintenance 
of the unit that shall be pressurized with water causing dislodging 

Appendix E-2: Arch Street Storm Sewer System Solids Removal BMP



Page 2 of 11 

of the settled sludge below the inclined plate settler for drainage 
towards the vacuum suction points. 

B. The unit shall contain an internal flow through duct located 
between the primary chamber and the grit chamber. Flows in 
excess of the design flow shall pass through the unit through the 
internal flow through duct.  

C. This product is produced by Terre Hill Concrete Products under 
the name “Terre Kleen™”.  All rights are reserved.(US Patent 
No. 6,676,832 B2) 

D. The Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) inclined 
plate separator shall operate based on the hydrostatic pressure 
differential between the inlet and outlet pipe. The flow is split in 
proportion to the number of inclined plate cells. The cells treat the 
water in parallel and combine the flow at the overflow weir. The 
inclined plate cell surfaces facilitate sliding of the sediment to the 
hopper below where it is protected from scour from subsequent 
flows. The design of the device shall prevent loss of captured 
pollutants including oil, grease, trash, debris, and sediment 
through scouring or other causes during all flows and conditions. 
The nutrient screen shall be positioned to allow passage of all 
flows without allowing loss of captured pollutants.  

E. The internal flow through duct provides additional flow area in 
addition to the inclined plate cells. All flows pass through the 
primary chamber so as to capture oil grease and floatable trash 
and debris and to allow by-pass of the excess flows only in the 
internal flow through duct while requiring design flows to continue 
to be treated in both the primary and the sedimentation grit 
chamber. The internal by-pass shall not allow loss of any captured 
pollutants during excess flows. 

F. Both the primary and the grit chambers shall be accessible 
through removable covers at grade for the removal of floatable 
material, water and the settled solids and floating particulates 
using a standard vacuum truck. No confined space entry shall be 
required for removal of captured pollutants. 

G. The grit chamber hopper shall contain a sediment sludge stainless 
steel spray assembly located in the grit chamber to facilitate clean 
out and maintenance of the unit that shall be pressurized with 
water causing dislodging of the settled sludge below the inclined 
plate settler for drainage towards the vacuum suction points. 

H. Captured sediment storage shall be not less than 0.7 Ft³/Ft2 of 
settling area in the Terre Kleen. 

 



Page 3 of 11 

I. Oil Storage shall be not less than 1.5 gallons/Ft2 in the in the Terre 
Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) 

 
 
1.2 SUBMITTALS 
 

A. Shop drawings shall be submitted as described in Division 1 – 
General Requirements. 

 
B. Certifications by a Professional Engineer licensed in the state of 

installation shall be submitted that the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent 
No. US 6,676,832 B2) inclined plate hydrodynamic separator 
structure conforms to the standards listed in this Specification. 

 
 
1.3 REFERENCES 
 

A. ASTM International ( ASTM ): 
A-48 Specification for Gray Iron Castings 
C-32 Specification for Sewer and Manhole Brick 
C-270 Specification for Mortar for Unit Masonry 
C-478 Specification for Precast Reinforced Concrete Manhole 
Sections 
C-913 Standard Specification for Precast Concrete Water and 

Wastewater Structures 
US Patent No. US 6676832 B2; Surface water purifying catch 

basin. 
 

B. Federal Specifications ( FS ): 
FS-SS-S-210 Sealing Compound, Preformed Plastic for 

Expansion Joints and Pipe Joints 
 
 
1.4 MANUFACTURERS 
 

A. The products furnished by named manufacturers are specified as 
a standard of quality and performance. 

 
B. The manufacture of the concrete structure shall be performed at a 

precast production facility certified by the National Precast 
Concrete Association (NPCA). 

 



Page 4 of 11 

C. The manufacturer of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 
6,676,832 B2) shall be licensed to produce and or sell the entire 
device or any components thereof by Terre Hill Concrete Products 
of Terre Hill Pennsylvania 717-445-3100. 

 
PART 2- PRODUCTS 
 
2.1 MATERIALS AND DESIGN 
 

A. The reinforced concrete vault structure shall be designed for HS-
25 traffic loading, and existing soil pressure, ground water 
pressure and buoyancy. The materials and structural design shall 
be per ASTM C-478 and ASTM C-913. The concrete shall have a 
minimum compressive strength of 5000 psi. 

 
B. The access cover shall be designed for HS-25 traffic loading and 

shall provide a minimum of 27 1/2 inches clear opening. Manhole 
frame and cover shall be East Jordan or Quirin manufactured from 
gray iron conforming to ASTM A-48 Class 35B. The cover shall 
contain the words “Stormwater Treatment System” and the Terre 
Kleen™ logo as approved by Terre Hill Concrete Products. 

 
C. Butyl mastic sealant for joints shall conform to ASTM C-990 and 

Federal Specifications ( FSFS-SS-S-210 Sealing Compound, 
Preformed Plastic for Expansion Joints and Pipe Joints 

 
D. Pipe openings shall be sized to accept pipes of the specified sizes 

and shall be sealed with hydraulic cement conforming to ASTM C- 
595M. 

 
E. The metal components of the inclined cell separator, baffle wall 

Aluminum Alloy 5052 (UNS # A95052) or equal. 
 

F. The hinge pins of the inclined cell separator shall be manufactured 
from stainless steel AISI Type 304L (UNS # S30403). 

 
G. All fasteners used in combination or connecting the inclined cell 

separator to the concrete structure shall be made from stainless 
steel AISI 316 (UNS # 31600) and the threads shall be properly 
lubricated with Permatex anti-seize Item 80078 lubricant or equal.  
All surfaces of aluminum components that are to be embedded or 
in contact with fresh, unhydrated concrete shall be coated with 



Page 5 of 11 

Koppers Bitumastic 300M. 
 

H. Per 57 Ft2 of sedimentation area, four (4) Ø 2 ¼” x 12” long 
sorbent booms with an absorption capacity of ¼ gallon per lineal 
foot shall be placed in the primary chamber for the absorption of 
gasoline; diesel fuel, lube oil, jet fuel, transformer oils, chlorinated 
solvents, aromatic solvents, hydraulic oils, light crude. The sorbent 
boom or Rubberizer® boom shall be manufactured by Haz-Mat 
Response Technologies Inc. or approved equal. 

 
2.2 PERFORMANCE 
 

A. The inlet pipe shall discharge the storm water into the primary 
chamber. In the primary chamber, the separator shall facilitate the 
floatation of liquids and particles lighter than the density of water.  
Floatable solids, greater than 19mm [3/4”], and liquids shall be 
retained in the primary chamber, and shall not be subject to loss 
through re-suspension or any other cause. Emulsified oils are not 
captured and are not part of the floatable mass. 

 
B. The heavy fraction of the solids shall settle in the bottom of the 

primary chamber. 
 

C. Particles in the range of 50 to 500 micro meters (µM) kept in 
suspension due to turbulence in the primary chamber shall pass 
through a nutrient screen with a maximum screen opening of 
16mm x 16mm [5/8”x 5/8”] and enter the grit chamber (sediment 
grit chamber) through a parallelogram port at the bottom of the 
inclined cell walls. This opening shall be approximately mid-
elevation between the inlet pipe invert and the vault invert. 

 
D. The solids and water between the inclined cell plate walls shall 

travel in an inclined direction toward the overflow weir at the top of 
the inclined plate cell. During this process, the solids shall settle 
and slide down towards the bottom of each plate cell and drop into 
the receiving hopper of the sedimentation grit chamber. The water 
shall discharge at the top of the cell, pass across a V-notch weir 
and cascade onto a baffle plate and drain to the effluent outlet 
pipe. 

 
E. The particles that shall be removed in the grit chamber shall be 

silt, fine sand, and sand. The typical density of these particles is 



Page 6 of 11 

2400 kg/M3 [150lbs/ft3], and their size between 2 microns and 
1000 microns with a d50= 70 Micron. The projected sedimentation 
surface area of the grit chamber shall be the cumulative horizontal 
projection of the sedimentation cell-floors that make up the 
sedimentation grit chamber. The total projected sedimentation 
surface area of the sedimentation cells, contained within the total 
structure footprint shall not be less than as follows: 

  
 Model     Structure Size  Sedimentation Surface Area 
 
1. Terre Kleen 09          4’6” x 7’0”     (31.50 ft²)               57 ft² 
2. Terre Kleen 18          6’6” x 7’0”     (45.50 ft²)                     115 ft² 
3. Terre Kleen 27          8’6” x 7’0”     (59.50 ft²)                     172 ft² 
4. Terre Kleen 36        10’6” x 7’0”     (73.50 ft²)                     230 ft² 
5. Terre Kleen 45        12’6” x 7’0”     (87.50 ft²)                     288 ft² 
6. Terre Kleen 54        14’6” x 7’0”   (101.50 ft²)                     345 ft² 
7. Terre Kleen 63        16’6” x 7’0”   (115.50 ft²)                     403 ft² 
 
 

F. The design flow in M3/sec [GPM or CFS] for each Terre Kleen™ 
(US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) inclined plate hydrodynamic 
separator water quality treatment device shall be as noted on the 
drawings. 

 
PART 3-INSTALLATION 
 
3.1 INCLINED PLATE SEPARATOR FABRICATION  
 

A. Fabrication of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 
B2) inclined plate hydrodynamic separator water quality device 
shall be in strict accordance with the design. 

 
B. The Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) inclined 

plate hydrodynamic separator water quality device shall be 
provided with mounting brackets for installation into the precast 
concrete structure with stainless steel mounting anchors. 

 
C. The Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) inclined 

plate hydrodynamic separator shall be provided with a flow 
channel on the effluent side of the settler and a clean-out opening 
next to the channel. 

 



Page 7 of 11 

D. The nutrient screen shall be placed as an extension of the baffle 
wall at the entrance to the parallelogram port in the divider wall. 

 
E. Certified welders experienced in the welding of specified thin 

metals shall place all welds. 
 

F. The fabricator shall remove shop soils, discoloration, and welding 
slag. 

 
3.2 PRECAST CONCRETE STRUCTURE 
 

A. The utility contractor installing the precast concrete structure shall 
be responsible installing the structure so as to stop the infiltration 
or loss of water into or out of the precast concrete structure. 

 
B. The precast concrete structure shall be installed level and plumb 

at the specified elevation shown on the signed, approved plans, on 
a compacted stone sub base 150mm [6”] thick. 

 
C  Excavation and backfill shall be as specified in the signed, 

approved plans. 
 
 
3.3 MANUFACTURER INSTALLATION TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
 

A At the time and place of installation of any Terre Kleen™ (US 
Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) the manufacturer, Terre Hill 
Concrete Products will provide a Product Liaison on site to offer 
technical assistance to the installation contractor to assure proper 
installation of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 
B2) in accordance with the signed, approved plans. 

 
 

3.4 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
 
A The maintenance of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 

6,676,832 B2) is the responsibility of the Owner. Each site has 
unique site conditions.  It is the responsibility of the Owner to 
establish a schedule according to the conditions of the specific 
Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) location. Failure 
to clean the sediment from the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 
6,676,832 B2) and to replace oil absorption booms will cause the 



Page 8 of 11 

Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) to not maintain 
its design performance capabilities.  It is strongly recommended 
that the Owner follow the prescribe maintenance specifications 
and procedures published by Terre Hill Concrete Products and 
copy thereof given to the installation contractor for delivery to the 
Owner.(A copy of the Maintenance Procedures are attached 
hereto and made a part hereof.) 

 
PART 4 Maintenance Procedures for Terre Kleen™ 
 
4.1 General 

 
A Inspection and maintenance must be performed on a regular 

basis, All captured pollutants must be removed from the Terre 
Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2). During the first year 
after installation inspections should be performed every three (3) 
months to determine the type and amount of pollutants in the 
Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2). Site conditions 
and weather will influence the rate of pollutant capture. A schedule 
of regular maintenance can then be established based upon the 
quarterly inspections. 

 
4.2 Pollutant Removal 

A Access to both the primary and grit chambers is provided by 
manhole openings. The gross pollutants such as litter and the oil 
absorption booms should be removed first. A vacuum truck or 
similar equipment is then utilized to remove the water and the 
sediment. Disposal of all of the removed pollutants should be 
properly documented in accordance with all applicable regulations. 
Removal may be done anytime after a rain event. 

 At all times keep sparks and flames away from the Terre Kleen™ 
(US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) as it may contain flammable 
material. 

 The Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2) is designed 
for inspection and cleaning from grade. If “confined entry” is 
desired, trained and certified personnel using OSHA regulation 
equipment is required. 

 Manhole covers and inlet grates must be put back securely to the 
frames after inspection or maintenance. 

 
 

4.3 Documentation 



Page 9 of 11 

A Proper documentation should include: 
a) dates and results of each inspection; 
b) proposed and installed repairs, renovations, improvements; 
c) type and amount of captured pollutants; 
d) disposal of pollutants; 
e) preparation and submittal of reports; 
f) document nutrient and sediment trading credits. 
 

4.4 Measurement 
A A carefully lowered stadia rod or similar instrument may be used to 

determine amount of captured sediment. The sludge dispersion 
manifold can assist in the removal of sediment. Manifold pipes 
mounted to the floor of the grit chamber connect to a hose that 
leads to the grade level manhole. The hose is pressurized by the 
vacuum truck’s spray nozzle. The pressurized manifold sprays 
water through small horizontal holes in the manifold pipes, which 
liquefies and disperses the sludge blanket for removal by the 
suction nozzle. 

 
5.0 Additional Requirements 
 A. Unit fabrication and field installation shall be in accordance with 
manufacturer’s requirements unless directed otherwise by the county 
Engineer. 
 B. The units that are located in the street or highway right of way 
shall be able to support a HS-25 loading without structural failure. Load 
carrying ability of the unit shall be verified by signed and sealed 
calculations prepared by an engineered licensed in New Jersey. 
Calculations shall be submitted for review and approved with the 
appropriate shop drawings for each unit. 
 C. Each unit must meet the dimensional limitations and requirements 
shown on the plans including but not limited to limit of disturbance, cover to 
finished grade, invert-in and invert-out. 
 D. Units must be able to accept inlet castings as wellas  manhole rim 
and cover without any loss of performance of the unit. 
 E. It is anticipated that the units will be installed in areas of high 
ground water. In addition to the dewatering operations described 
elsewhere, the Contractor shall provide buoyancy calculations indicating a 
safety factor of two (2) against flotation. Buoyancy calculations shall be 
performed for the situation that the dewatering operation has failed and the 
unit has not been backfilled as of yet. Calculations shall be prepared and 
signed and sealed by an Engineer licensed in New Jersey. 
 F. In areas of high ground water, compacted one inch (1”) diameter 



Page 10 of 11 

crushed stone shall be used as backfill to the top of the ground water table. 
 G. The Contractor shall submit for approval, shop drawings for the units and any 

pipe coupling device that may be used. 

 

 
6.0 LIMITED WARRANTY 

 Terre Hill Stormwater Systems provides the following Express 
Written Limited Warranty in lieu of any other warranty, whether oral , written , 
express, or implied. (the Warranty). All other warranties, representations, 
remedies, guarantees claims, or legal or equitable causes of action, in contract, 
tort or otherwise; including the Implied Warranties of Merchantability and Fitness 
for a Particular Purpose are excluded. 

  

1. This Warranty applies solely to the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 

6,676,832 B2) products manufactured by Terre Hill Stormwater 

Systems and sold to the original purchaser (the Purchaser) 

2. The structural integrity of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 

6,676,832 B2); when installed in accordance with Terre Hill 

Stormwater System’s written installation specifications, and in 

accordance with site conditions, requirements of all laws and 

regulations, are warranted to the Purchaser against defective 

materials and workmanship for four (4) years from the date of 

installation. 

3. Terre Hill Stormwater Systems agrees to provide the labor and 

material to remove the installed Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 

6,676,832 B2) and reinstall the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 

6,676,832 B2), upon satisfactory proof of a breach of this Warranty. 

4. Excluded from Warranty are claims resulting from or caused by 

damage; alteration; accident; misuse; abuse involving the Terre 

Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2), or negligence of the 

Purchaser or any third party. to the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. 

US 6,676,832 B2) 

5. Terre Hill Stormwater Systems sole liability to the Purchaser shall 

be as expressly set forth in this Warranty, whether the claim is 

based upon contract, tort, equity or any other legal or equitable 

theory. 

6. Under no circumstances shall Terre Hill Stormwater Systems be 



Page 11 of 11 

liable to Purchaser or any third party for product liability claims ; or 

the cost of goods or services related to the purchase or installation 

of the Terre Kleen™ (US Patent No. US 6,676,832 B2). 

 

The Warranty is contingent upon verification of installation in strict 

accordance with the Terre Hill Stormwater Systems specifications, and use of the 

product strictly for the application specified. The construction plans for 

installation of the product shall be approved in writing by Terre Hill Stormwater 

Systems, and the construction installation plans shall be sealed by a professional 

engineer, licensed to perform civil engineering in the jurisdiction wherein the 

product will be installed. 

All conditions for product usage as specified by Terre Hill Stormwater 

Systems must be satisfied in order for any of the terms of the Warranty to be 

valid, in full or in part. 

The Warranty guarantees that any product of the Terre Hill Stormwater 

System will equal or exceed the Terre Hill Stormwater System written 

performance claim for stormwater treatment. 

This Warranty of Terre Hill Stormwater Systems does not extend to 

incidental, consequential, special, or indirect claims , expenses or damages. 

Terre Hill Stormwater Systems shall not be liable for penalties or liquidated 

damages, including loss of profits or production and overhead costs; or other 

loss or expense incurred by the Purchaser or any third party. 

The Warranty is limited to those claims filed in writing with Terre Hill 

Stormwater Systems, a Division of Terre Hill Concrete Products on or before four 

(4) years from the date of substantial completion of installation. The written claim 

shall specify and describe the alleged defect upon which the breach of Warranty 

is claimed in reasonable detail. 

The Warranty with all of its obligations, rights and limitations and protections 
shall apply to Terre Hill Concrete Products. 
 
       END OF SECTION 
 
 
TK Specs dated 09.26.12 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix F 

  

Streambank Restoration 

 
Appendix F-1:  Pleasant Spring Creek Streambank Stabilization Plans 

 



ST

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 TomTom 

S

LEGEND

ST

E

G

W

MW

T

©
 

65
 E

AS
T 

BU
TL

ER
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 N
EW

 B
R

IT
AI

N
, P

A 
18

90
1 

● 
(2

15
) 3

45
-4

33
0 

● 
w

w
w

.g
ilm

or
e-

as
so

c.
co

m
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

H
EA

D
Q

U
AR

TE
R

S



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 TomTom 

S

LEGEND

ST

E

G

W

MW

T

©
 

65
 E

AS
T 

BU
TL

ER
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 N
EW

 B
R

IT
AI

N
, P

A 
18

90
1 

● 
(2

15
) 3

45
-4

33
0 

● 
w

w
w

.g
ilm

or
e-

as
so

c.
co

m
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

H
EA

D
Q

U
AR

TE
R

S



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 TomTom 

©
 

65
 E

AS
T 

BU
TL

ER
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 N
EW

 B
R

IT
AI

N
, P

A 
18

90
1 

● 
(2

15
) 3

45
-4

33
0 

● 
w

w
w

.g
ilm

or
e-

as
so

c.
co

m
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

H
EA

D
Q

U
AR

TE
R

S

°

°

°

°

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER
PE-045420-E

NO.

C
O

M M O N W E A L T H    O
F

P
E

N
N S Y L V A

N

I
A



SS

SS

SS

SS

©
 

65
 E

AS
T 

BU
TL

ER
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 N
EW

 B
R

IT
AI

N
, P

A 
18

90
1 

● 
(2

15
) 3

45
-4

33
0 

● 
w

w
w

.g
ilm

or
e-

as
so

c.
co

m
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

H
EA

D
Q

U
AR

TE
R

S

°

°

°

°

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER
PE-045420-E

NO.

C
O

M M O N W E A L T H    O
F

P
E

N
N S Y L V A

N

I
A



SS

©
 

65
 E

AS
T 

BU
TL

ER
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 N
EW

 B
R

IT
AI

N
, P

A 
18

90
1 

● 
(2

15
) 3

45
-4

33
0 

● 
w

w
w

.g
ilm

or
e-

as
so

c.
co

m
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

H
EA

D
Q

U
AR

TE
R

S

°

°

°

°

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER
PE-045420-E

NO.

C
O

M M O N W E A L T H    O
F

P

E
N

N S Y L V A
N

I
A



SS

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 TomTom 

©
 

65
 E

AS
T 

BU
TL

ER
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 N
EW

 B
R

IT
AI

N
, P

A 
18

90
1 

● 
(2

15
) 3

45
-4

33
0 

● 
w

w
w

.g
ilm

or
e-

as
so

c.
co

m
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

H
EA

D
Q

U
AR

TE
R

S

REGISTRATION
LA003364

PENNSY LV A NIA

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
 L A NDSCA PE

 A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T

NUMBER

CY
NT HIA  MA R IE CULP



SS

SS

SS

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 TomTom 

REGISTRATION
LA003364

PENNSY LV A NIA

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
 L A NDSCA PE

 A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T

NUMBER

CY
NT HIA  MA R IE CULP

©
 

65
 E

AS
T 

BU
TL

ER
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 N
EW

 B
R

IT
AI

N
, P

A 
18

90
1 

● 
(2

15
) 3

45
-4

33
0 

● 
w

w
w

.g
ilm

or
e-

as
so

c.
co

m
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

H
EA

D
Q

U
AR

TE
R

S

PLANT SCHEDULE - AREA 2
KEY QTY. BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE ROOT NOTES

CANOPY TREES

CO1 1 CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS HACKBERRY 2-2 1/2" CAL B&B

CO2 5 CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS HACKBERRY 10 GAL CONT

PO1 3 PLATANUS OCCIDENTALIS SYCAMORE 2-2 1/2" CAL B&B

PO2 3 PLATANUS OCCIDENTALIS SYCAMORE 10 GAL CONT

QB1 1 QUERCUS BICOLOR SWAMP WHITE OAK 2-2 1/2" CAL B&B

QB2 2 QUERCUS BICOLOR SWAMP WHITE OAK 10 GAL CONT

QP1 1 QUERCUS PHELLOS WILLOW OAK 2-2 1/2" CAL B&B

QP2 1 QUERCUS PHELLOS WILLOW OAK 10 GAL CONT

SN2 3 SALIX NIGRA BLACK WILLOW 10 GAL CONT

UNDERSTORY TREES

AC 8 AMELANCHIER CANADENSIS SERVICEBERRY 6' HT MIN B&B MULTI-STEM

BN 4 BETULA NIGRA RIVER BIRCH 6' HT MIN B&B MULTI-STEM

MV 3 MAGNOLIA VIRGINIANA SWEETBAY MAGNOLIA 6' HT MIN B&B MULTI-STEM

SHRUBS

CS 15 CORNUS SERICEA REDTWIG DOGWOOD 36" MIN CONT

HQ 8 HYDRANGEA QUERCIFOLIA OAKLEAF HYDRANGEA 36" MIN CONT

SC 10 SAMBUCUS CANADENSIS ELDERBERRY 36" MIN CONT

VA 15 VIBURNUM ACERIFOLIUM MAPLELEAF VIBURNUM 36" MIN CONT



SS

©
 

65
 E

AS
T 

BU
TL

ER
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 N
EW

 B
R

IT
AI

N
, P

A 
18

90
1 

● 
(2

15
) 3

45
-4

33
0 

● 
w

w
w

.g
ilm

or
e-

as
so

c.
co

m
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

H
EA

D
Q

U
AR

TE
R

S

REGISTRATION
LA003364

PENNSY LV A NIA

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
 L A NDSCA PE

 A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T

NUMBER

CY
NT HIA  MA R IE CULP



ST

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 TomTom 

©
 

65
 E

AS
T 

BU
TL

ER
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 N
EW

 B
R

IT
AI

N
, P

A 
18

90
1 

● 
(2

15
) 3

45
-4

33
0 

● 
w

w
w

.g
ilm

or
e-

as
so

c.
co

m
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

H
EA

D
Q

U
AR

TE
R

S

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER
PE-045420-E

NO.

C
O

M M O N W E A L T H    O
F

P

E

N
N S Y L V A

N

I
A



©
 

65
 E

AS
T 

BU
TL

ER
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 N
EW

 B
R

IT
AI

N
, P

A 
18

90
1 

● 
(2

15
) 3

45
-4

33
0 

● 
w

w
w

.g
ilm

or
e-

as
so

c.
co

m
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

H
EA

D
Q

U
AR

TE
R

S

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER
PE-045420-E

NO.

C
O

M M O N W E A L T H    O
F

P
E

N
N S Y L V A

N

I
A



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE
MEMORANDUM 

DATE: September 25, 2025 

TO: Andrea Coaxum, Borough Manager 
Council Members  
Mayor Hollenbach 
Rebecca Deemer, Finance Director 

FROM: Jeffrey Tulone, Public Works Director 

Jeffrey Tulone 

RE: 2025-2026 Rock Salt Bids 

Attached to this memo is the final tabulation of salt bids received through the Bucks County Consortium 
for de-icing operations during the 2025-2026 season.   The lowest bidder was Morton Salt, Inc., with a 
price of $61.86 per ton delivered.   

The Borough purchased rock salt from the Bucks County Consortium last year for $60.95 per ton, so this 
year’s price will include an increase of $.91 per ton.  Below is a list of salt prices over the last 5 years, to 
give Council an idea of the cost history: 

2021 $47.75 per ton 
2022 $57.88 per ton 
2023 $67.76 per ton 
2024 $66.00 per ton 
2025 $60.95 per ton 

I also have attached the tabulation of salt bids received through the Co-Stars Program with the State. 
The lowest bidder was Cargill, Inc., with a price of $81.46 per ton delivered, so the Co-Stars price is 
$19.60 more than the price from the Bucks County Consortium’s lowest bidder. 

The Borough currently has a full bin of 800 tons of salt.  The minimum amount of salt we purchase each 
season is approximately 400 tons, which could be more, weather depending. 

At this time, I am requesting that Council authorize the Public Works Department to purchase rock salt 
for the 2025-2026 season through the Bucks County Consortium from Morton Salt, Inc. in the amount of 
$61.86 per ton delivered. 



BOROUGH OF DOYLESTOWN 
Bucks County, Pennsylvania 

 
   

      
 OFFICIALS: 
      NONI WEST, Mayor 
      JACK O’BRIEN, President 

      AMY POPKIN, Vice President 
      JOHN H. DAVIS, Manager 
       
 

       

 

 

10 Doyle Street ~ Doylestown, PA 18901 ~ 215-345-4140 ~ FAX 215-345-8351 

Web Site Address:  www.doylestownborough.net 

 

 

 

 

Salt Bid Results for 2025-2026 Season 

 

Bids were opened and publicly read for the purchase of Rock Salt for the 2025-2026 season on 

Wednesday, August 13, 2025. Below is a tabulation of Bids received 

  

         Delivered   Undelivered 

       Price Per Ton  Price Per Ton  
 

1. Morton Salt, Inc    $ 61.86   $ 61.00 

2. Eastern Salt Company   $ 89.90      $ 89.90 

3. Riverside Construction   $ 64.50       $ 64.50 

4. American Rock Salt    No Bid 

5. Cargill      No Bid 

6. Compass Minerals    No Bid  

 



Sodium Chloride (Bulk Road Salt) 6100053321 - 2025-26 County Pricing 8/27/2025

County
Cumulative 

Estimate
County 

Bid Price 
County

Cumulative 
Estimate

County 
Bid Price 

County
Cumulative 

Estimate
County 

Bid Price 
County

Cumulative 
Estimate

County 
Bid Price 

County
Cumulative 

Estimate
County 

Bid Price 

Allegheny 99,740 $91.44 Beaver 21,455 $89.59 Adams 4,226 $90.88 Butler 44,099 $94.57 Delaware 10,874 $84.51

Armstrong 9,834 $92.00 Bucks 15,703 $81.46 Clarion 9,563 $82.16 Crawford 13,393 $67.90 York 21,600 $83.50

Bedford 9,684 $105.22 Cameron 1,522 $94.02 Cumberland 7,056 $94.54 Erie 41,243 $59.62

Berks 29,362 $80.16 Carbon 9,946 $96.26 Philadelphia 14,200 $84.27 Mercer 20,123 $69.43

Blair 16,900 $94.69 Columbia 9,561 $84.95 Venango 10,604 $74.15

Bradford 13,482 $77.95 Franklin 7,177 $100.21 Warren 5,681 $75.27

Cambria 32,163 $99.18 Huntingdon 7,018 $102.49

Centre 17,857 $99.17 Lawrence 19,165 $80.34

Chester 22,258 $84.69 Luzerne 57,710 $90.70

Clearfield 13,616 $93.01 Lycoming 16,249 $78.49

Clinton 7,423 $97.93 Montgomery 27,398 $80.91

Dauphin 16,246 $94.57 Pike 12,323 $95.02

Elk 5,590 $98.40 Potter 2,539 $78.70

Fayette 20,937 $89.04 Susquehanna 20,673 $70.53

Forest 1,059 $84.33 Tioga 11,399 $69.40

Fulton 4,994 $104.35 Wayne 11,538 $84.54

Greene 8,114 $96.14 Wyoming 6,238 $81.68

Indiana 17,585 $93.99

Jefferson 10,333 $82.22

Juniata 2,241 $102.65

Lackawanna 40,692 $86.74

Lancaster 12,035 $83.69

Lebanon 12,460 $92.00

Lehigh 27,351 $90.64

McKean 10,570 $74.41

Mifflin 3,632 $111.10

Monroe 23,809 $84.67

Montour 3,504 $88.24

Northampton 34,594 $85.06

Northumberland 10,799 $95.15

Perry 5,117 $103.49

Schuylkill 24,693 $90.87

Snyder 4,534 $99.42

Somerset 24,440 $97.61

Sullivan 3,419 $80.37

Union 5,120 $86.90

Washington 44,250 $90.65

4600016537 - American Rock 
Salt

4600016538 - Cargill, Inc. 4600016539 - Morton Salt
4600016540 - Compass 

Minerals
4600016542 - Eastern Salt



2025-26 Sodium Chloride, (Bulk Road Salt) Renewal Summary
 

 
American Rock Salt Co. (4600016537)

• Agreed to a 1-year renewal term (August 1, 2025 – July 31, 2026) 

• Agreed to waive storage fees and to release COSTARS members from 
their outstanding tonnage required to meet 60% minimum for the 2024-25 
season. 

 
Cargill, Inc. (4600016538) 

• Agreed to a 2-year renewal term (August 1, 2024 – July 31, 2026) following the 
2023-24 season. 

• As part of the 2-year renewal, agreed to waive storage fees and to release 
COSTARS members from their outstanding tonnage required to meet 60% 
minimum for the 2023-24 season as well as the 2024-25 season. 

Morton Salt (4600016539) 

• Agreed to a 1-year renewal term (August 1, 2025 – July 31, 2026) 

• Agreed to waive storage fees and to release COSTARS members from 
their outstanding tonnage required to meet 60% minimum for the 2024-25 
season. 

 
Compass Minerals America (4600016540) 

• Agreed to a 1-year renewal term (August 1, 2025 – July 31, 2026) 

• Agreed to waive storage fees and to release COSTARS members from 
their outstanding tonnage required to meet 60% minimum for the 2024-25 
season. 

Eastern Salt (4600016542) 

• Agreed to a 1-year renewal term (August 1, 2025 – July 31, 2026) 

• Agreed to waive storage fees and to release COSTARS members from 
their outstanding tonnage required to meet 60% minimum for the 2024-25 
season. 



PERKASIE BOROUGH 
RESOLUTION #2025-47 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
FOR THE CREATION OF A PARKING SPACE RESERVED 
FOR A HANDICAPPED PERSON OR DISABLED VETERAN 

WHEREAS, Perkasie Borough Ordinance #691 provides that Perkasie Borough Council 
may, by Resolution, establish on the streets or borough parking lot, additional parking spaces 
reserved for handicapped persons or disabled veterans parking; and  

WHEREAS, Borough Council desires to establish such parking spaces. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following parking space is established and 
reserved for handicapped persons or disabled veterans at a space in front of  
509 Vine Street, Perkasie.  

RESOLVED this 6th day of October, 2025. 

ATTEST: BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

By: By:  _____________________________ 
 Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary  James Ryder, Council President 



1

Megan McShane

From: rschurr perkasiepd.org <rschurr@perkasiepd.org>
Sent: Tuesday, September 30, 2025 4:30 PM
To: Andrea Coaxum; Jeff Hollenbach; Jeffrey P. Garton; James Ryder
Cc: Megan McShane
Subject: HC Parking
Attachments: DETWEILER HC SPOT.pdf

Importance: High

Andrea, 

Can we get this HC spot on the agenda for 10/6. It is Ɵme sensiƟve as the resident is having surgery on 10/6. 

I just received the request this morning. Jeff already has the signs. 

Thank you 

Robert A. Schurr, M.S. 
Chief of Police 
Perkasie Borough Police Department 
311 S 9th St, Perkasie PA 18944 
215-257-6876

This e-mail transmission and any documents, files, or previous e-mail messages attached to it, are confidential. If you are not the 
intended recipient, or a person responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
disclosure, copying, dissemination, distribution, or use of any of the information contained in, or attached to this e-mail transmission 
is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this transmission in error, please immediately notify me by forwarding this e-mail to 
rschurr@perkasiepd.org, or by telephone at (215) 257-6876 and then delete the message and its attachments from your computer. 



Borough of Perkasie
Calendar Year 2025

Wholesale Power Cost Summary
August 2025

GDS Associates, Inc 1 9/29/2025



1/ Excludes PJM Market Interaction Costs

2/ Net RPM is capacity load costs less capacity generation credits 

Borough of Perkasie

2025 Year to Date Wholesale Power Summary 

88.9
80.0 82.9 82.9 84.6

102.2 98.3
105.9

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

$
/M

W
h

All-in Wholesale Power Rate 

Projected Actual

Budget 86.7

Actual 91.3

YTD Rate ($/MWh)

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

M
W

h

Total Energy Requirements 

Projection Actual

Budget 40,378

Actual 39,724

YTD Energy (MWh)

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

$
'0

0
0

All-in Wholesale Power Cost  

Projection Actual

Budget $3,500

Actual $3,626

YTD Cost ($000s)

23.0
20.3

27.9
29.3 30.0

34.0

27.0

33.6

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

$
/M

W
h

PJM Rates 

NITS Net RPM Ancillary Costs/Other ARR/FTR Net

GDS Associates, Inc 2 9/29/2025



GDS Associates, Inc. 3 9/29/2025

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

8/1 8/3 8/5 8/7 8/9 8/11 8/14 8/16 8/18 8/20 8/22 8/24 8/27 8/29 8/31

D
ay

-A
h

e
ad

 M
ar

ke
t 

P
ri

ce
 (

$
/M

W
h

)

M
W

h
Hourly Perkasie Load Wholesale Power Supply 

1.0 MW BP 7X24 1.5 MW CITI 7x24 Shell Fixed Load Shape

2.8 MW BP 5x16 NYPA Market Purchases

Wholesale Load DA LMP

Wholesale Power Supply (MWh) %

NYPA 282 5.8%

Peaking Project 0.02 0.0%

Resources 282 5.8%

Blocks 5,510 112.4%

Market Purchases 187 3.8%

Market Sales (1,076) -21.9%

Wholesale Load Responsibility 4,904 100.0%



GDS Associates, Inc. 4 9/29/2025

($100)

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

$700

$800

($
$

$
)
ARR/FTR Settlements

Credit / (Charge)

ARR FTR

ARR Monthly Total $6,638

FTR Monthly Total $3,530

Total $10,167

Monthly ARR/FTR Totals



Borough of Perkasie

All-In Rate Summary

Delta

Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual

($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh)

Jan-25 $170.61 $162.54 $47.74 $51.66 $67.22 $112.54 $41.30 $26.13 $54.65 $64.44 $19.14 $22.96 $1.53 $1.46 $75.33 $88.86 13.53

Feb-25 $193.15 $156.21 $47.52 $50.35 $64.65 $63.15 $31.79 $26.77 $56.78 $58.36 $22.07 $20.26 $1.56 $1.43 $80.40 $80.05 (0.35)

Mar-25 $178.21 $129.58 $44.70 $44.72 $50.09 $51.60 $29.86 $31.17 $52.99 $53.32 $22.75 $27.94 $1.56 $1.62 $77.30 $82.88 5.59

Apr-25 $184.00 $181.78 $41.47 $40.70 $43.37 $50.30 $26.72 $27.25 $51.99 $51.97 $28.54 $29.29 $1.61 $1.69 $82.14 $82.95 0.81

May-25 $181.38 $166.93 $39.83 $40.59 $48.02 $43.97 $24.55 $25.38 $50.55 $52.54 $27.73 $30.01 $1.60 $2.10 $79.88 $84.65 4.76

Jun-25 $286.74 $309.02 $44.57 $46.67 $54.90 $36.08 $27.32 $20.54 $62.56 $66.70 $35.13 $34.00 $1.57 $1.52 $99.25 $102.23 2.97

Jul-25 $282.61 $285.18 $49.16 $50.26 $98.36 $96.76 $32.25 $33.61 $66.99 $69.94 $30.08 $27.03 $1.54 $1.35 $98.61 $98.32 (0.29)

Aug-25 $276.98 $285.65 $47.09 $50.70 $65.93 $66.43 $38.76 $23.26 $63.39 $70.84 $32.07 $33.59 $1.55 $1.51 $97.01 $105.95 8.94
Sep-25 $353.16 - $46.41 - $56.72 - $32.17 - $66.13 - $40.82 - $1.59 - $108.55 -

Oct-25 $307.95 - $36.32 - $57.36 - $28.56 - $57.52 - $45.98 - $1.61 - $105.12 -

Nov-25 $318.90 - $42.78 - $56.50 - $29.73 - $61.41 - $40.27 - $1.58 - $103.26 -

Dec-25 $306.79 - $48.53 - $58.23 - $33.51 - $62.41 - $31.67 - $1.54 - $95.61 -

YTD $249.51 $228.71 $45.75 $47.63 $63.20 $72.55 $33.56 $26.22 $58.05 $62.01 $27.08 $27.72 $0.02 $1.55 $86.69 $91.28 $4.60

1/ Resource, Purchased Blocks and Market Purchase/Sales include applicable Congestion and Losses costs. Each of these categories are weighted by their applicable energy amounts.

2/ Includes NITS Charge, Net RPM Cost, Ancillary Services Cost and ARR/FTRs Credits, Other Transmission Charges, Admin Fees and Load Reconciliation

3/ Includes AMP Service Fees

4/ All-In Rate is based on Total Sales

2025 Year to Date Summary

Miscellaneous Costs3 All-In Rate4Resource Cost1 Purchased Blocks1 Market Purchases1 Market Sales1 Total Energy Cost PJM Cost2

GDS Associates, Inc 5 9/29/2025



Borough of Perkasie

Energy Supply Summary (MWh)

Projected Actual Capacity Factor1 Projected Actual Projected Actual

(MWh) (MWh) (%) (MWh) (MWh) (MWh) (MWh)

Jan-25 276 343 82% 294 639 (243) (139)

Feb-25 250 297 79% 435 541 (218) (157)

Mar-25 277 339 81% 288 115 (163) (591)

Apr-25 267 267 66% 210 207 (149) (228)

May-25 277 317 76% 255 107 (100) (260)

Jun-25 246 286 71% 472 551 (187) (492)

Jul-25 247 295 71% 374 448 (419) (402)

Aug-25 254 282 68% 275 187 (529) (1,076)
Sep-25 240 - 0% 551 - (373) -

Oct-25 277 - 0% 192 - (165) -

Nov-25 268 - 0% 263 - (284) -
Dec-25 276 - 0% 331 - (225) -

YTD 2,094 2,425 74% 2,602 2,795 (2,009) (3,344)

1/ The Capacity Factor is based on the actual generation.  

NYPA Market Purchases Market Sales

2025 Year to Date Summary

GDS Associates, Inc 6 9/29/2025



Borough of Perkasie

PJM Charge Summary (excl. PJM Market Interaction Costs)

Delta

Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual

($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($/MWh) ($/MWh)

Jan-25 87 91 17 18 - (13) 11 53 114 149 $19.14 $22.96 $3.81

Feb-25 87 82 17 16 - (12) 9 22 113 108 $22.07 $20.26 ($1.81)

Mar-25 87 91 17 18 - (4) 9 18 112 123 $22.75 $27.94 $5.19

Apr-25 87 88 17 17 - (8) 7 14 111 111 $28.54 $29.29 $0.75

May-25 87 91 17 18 - (9) 7 12 111 112 $27.73 $30.01 $2.27

Jun-25 87 89 81 67 - (7) 9 19 177 167 $35.13 $34.00 ($1.12)

Jul-25 87 91 81 69 - (8) 10 14 178 166 $30.08 $27.03 ($3.05)

Aug-25 87 91 81 69 - (10) 10 14 178 165 $32.07 $33.59 $1.52
Sep-25 87 - 81 - - - 8 - 175 - $40.82 - -

Oct-25 87 - 81 - - - 7 - 175 - $45.98 - -

Nov-25 87 - 81 - - - 8 - 176 - $40.27 - -

Dec-25 87 - 81 - - - 10 - 178 - $31.67 - -

YTD 697 716 325 291 0 (71) 71 165 1,093 1,101 27.08 27.72 0.65

  1/ Net RPM is the RPM Cost less the Generator's RPM Credits.

  2/ Ancillary services/Other also includes: Admin fees, Load Reconciliation and Other Transmission Charges

  3/ The Rate is based on Total Sales 

2025 Year to Date Summary

NITS Net RPM
1 ARR/FTR

Ancillary 

Services/Other
2 Total Contribution to All-In Rate

3

0

10

20

30

40

50

$
/M

W
h

PJM Charges

Projection Actual

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

$
/M

W
h

Ancillary Services

Projection Actual

GDS Associates, Inc 7 9/29/2025



Borough of Perkasie

Billing Unit Rate
Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)

(MWh)/(MW)
($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($)

Invoice Summary1

1. AMP 5,540 $65.37 $362,096 4,904 $74.92 $367,436 (635.32) $9.56 $5,341
(a) NYPA 254 $26.39 $6,716 282 $14.59 $4,118 27.84 ($11.81) ($2,598)

(b) PA Peaking Project 80 $1,074.02 $85,922 0.0 - $76,526 (79.99) - ($9,396)

(c) Purchased Blocks 5,539 $47.09 $260,868 5,510 $50.70 $279,375 (28.80) $3.60 $18,507

(d) Miscellaneous Costs2
5,540 $1.55 $8,590 4,904 $1.51 $7,417 (635.32) ($0.04) ($1,173)

2. PJM 5,540 $31.64 $175,285 4,904 $31.03 $152,170 (635.32) ($0.61) ($23,116)

(a) Market Purchases 275 $65.93 $18,152 187 $66.43 $12,435 (88.14) $0.50 ($5,717)
(b) Market Sales (529) $38.76 ($20,523) (1,076) $23.26 ($25,016) (546.24) ($15.51) ($4,493)
(c) Charges/(Credits)3

5,540 $32.07 $177,657 4,904 $33.59 $164,751 (635.32) $1.52 ($12,906)

3. Total Wholesale Power Costs4: 5,540 $97.01 $537,381 4,904 $105.95 $519,606 (635) $8.94 ($17,775)

1/ Resource, Purchased Blocks and Market Purchase/Sales includes Congestion and Losses costs.  

2/ Miscellaneous Costs incl. AMP Service Fees

3/ Includes Net RPM (RPM Charges and RPM Credits) for each Resource
4/Based on Total Sales 

ActualProjected Delta

August 2025

GDS Associates, Inc 8 9/29/2025



Borough of Perkasie

Billing Unit Rate
Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)

(MWh)/(MW)
($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($)

AMP

Resources

1. NYPA

2.    Fixed Charge 0.6 $4.13 $2,309 0.6 $4.05 $2,267 0 (0.08) ($42)

3.    Energy Charge 254 $19.58 $4,982 282 $5.56 $1,569 28 (14.02) ($3,413)

4.    Other Adjustments $0 $55 0 0.00 $55

5.    Congestion & Losses 254 ($2.26) ($575) 282 $0.81 $228 28 3.07 $803

6. All in Cost 254 $26.39 $6,716 282 $14.59 $4,118 28 (11.81) ($2,598)

7. PA Peaking Project

8.    Fixed Charge 4.8 $1.80 $8,640 4.3 $0.00 $0 (0) (1.80) ($8,640)

9.    Energy Charge 80 $100.00 $8,000 0.0 $323.33 $5 (80) 223.33 ($7,995)

10.    Congestion & Losses 0 $0.00 $0 0.0 $0.00 $0 0 0.00 $0

11.    Other Adjustments 4.8 $14.43 $69,282 4.3 $17.71 $76,521 (0) 3.28 $7,240

12. All in Cost ($/kW-mo) 4.8 $17.90 $85,922 4.3 $17.71 $76,526 (0) (0.19) ($9,396)

13. Total - Resources 334 $276.98 $92,638 282 $285.65 $80,644 (52) 8.67 ($11,993)

Purchased Blocks

14. BP 1.0 MW 7x24 (PPL)

15.    Energy Charge 744 $34.71 $25,824 744 $34.71 $25,824 0 0.00 $0

16.    Congestion & Losses 744 ($1.84) ($1,369) 744 $1.52 $1,132 0 3.36 $2,501

17. All in Cost 744 $32.87 $24,456 744 $36.23 $26,956 0 3.36 $2,501

18. BP 2.8 MW 5x16 (PPL)

19.    Energy Charge 1,030 $40.91 $42,154 941 $40.91 $38,488 (90) 0.00 ($3,666)

20.    Congestion & Losses 1,030 ($3.29) ($3,392) 941 $1.55 $1,455 (90) 4.84 $4,846

21. All in Cost 1,030 $37.62 $38,762 941 $42.46 $39,943 (90) 4.84 $1,181

22. Shell Fixed Load Shape 2x16 (PPL)

23.    Energy Charge 666 $64.85 $43,164 832 $64.85 $53,955 166 0.00 $10,791

24.    Congestion & Losses 666 ($0.46) ($307) 832 $1.49 $1,239 166 1.95 $1,546

25. All in Cost 666 $64.39 $42,857 832 $66.34 $55,194 166 1.95 $12,337

26. Shell Fixed Load Shape 5x16 (PPL)

27.    Energy Charge 1,214 $64.85 $78,754 1,109 $64.85 $71,906 (106) 0.00 ($6,848)

28.    Congestion & Losses 1,214 ($3.29) ($3,997) 1,109 $1.55 $1,714 (106) 4.84 $5,712

29. All in Cost 1,214 $61.56 $74,757 1,109 $66.40 $73,620 (106) 4.84 ($1,137)

30. Shell Fixed Load Shape 7x8 (PPL)

31.    Energy Charge 769 $64.85 $49,857 769 $64.85 $49,759 0 0.00 ($97)

32.    Congestion & Losses 769 ($0.46) ($354) 769 $1.51 $1,160 0 1.97 $1,515

33. All in Cost 769 $64.39 $49,502 769 $66.23 $50,920 0 1.84 $1,417

34. CITI 1.5 MW 7x24 (PPL Resid)

35.    Energy Charge 1,116 $29.20 $32,587 1,116 $29.20 $32,587 0 0.00 $0

36.    Congestion & Losses 1,116 ($1.84) ($2,053) 1,116 $0.14 $155 0 1.98 $2,208

37. All in Cost 1,116 $27.36 $30,534 1,116 $29.34 $32,742 0 1.98 $2,208

38. Total - Purchased Blocks 5,539 $47.09 $260,868 5,510 $50.70 $279,375 (29) 3.60 $18,507

ActualProjection Delta

August 2025

GDS Associates, Inc 9 9/29/2025



Borough of Perkasie

Billing Unit Rate
Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)

(MWh)/(MW)
($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($)

ActualProjection Delta

August 2025

Miscellaneous Costs

39. AMP Fees 5,540 $1.55 $8,590 4,904 $1.51 $7,417 (635) (0.04) ($1,173)

40. Adjustment for Pool Power $0 $0 0 0.00 $0

41. Total - Miscellaneous Costs 5,540 $1.55 $8,590 4,904 $1.51 $7,417 (635) (0.04) ($1,173)

42. Total - AMP $362,096 $367,436 0 0.00 $5,341

PJM Charges 

43. Market Interaction

44. Net Market Purchases 275 $65.93 $18,152 187 $66.43 $12,435 (88) $0.50 ($5,717)

45. Day-Ahead Purchases 176 $61.03 $10,767 176 $61.03 $10,767

46. Balancing Purchases 55 $55.33 $3,029 55 $55.33 $3,029

47. Net Market Sales (529) $38.76 ($20,523) (1,076) $23.26 ($25,016) (546) ($15.51) ($4,493)

48. Day-Ahead Sales (1,013) $23.11 ($23,403) (1013) $23.11 ($23,403)

49. Balancing Sales (107) $27.79 ($2,974) (107) $27.79 ($2,974)

50. NITS 14 $6.07 $87,125 10 $9.24 $91,463 (4) $3.17 $4,338

51. Other Transmission Charges 14 $0.00 $0 10 $0.84 $8,335 (4) $0.84 $8,335

52. RPM Capacity

53. RPM Charge 16 $5.50 $85,316 9 $8.40 $74,170 (6) $2.90 ($11,145)

54. RPM Credit ($4,589) ($5,020) ($431)

55. Net RPM $80,726 $69,150 ($11,576)

56. Ancillary 5,540 $1.77 $9,805 4,904 $0.77 $3,790 (635) ($1.00) ($6,015)

57. ARR/FTR Credits 5,540 $0.00 $0 4,904 ($2.07) ($10,167) (635) ($2.07) ($10,167)

58. Administration Charges 5,540 $0.00 $0 4,904 $0.44 $2,180 (635) $0.44 $2,180

59. True-Up Load Reconciliation $0 $0 $0

60. Total PJM Charges 5,540 $31.64 $175,285 4,904 $31.03 $152,170 (635) ($0.61) ($23,116)

GDS Associates, Inc 10 9/29/2025



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE
MEMORANDUM 

DATE: October 1, 2025 

TO: Borough Council 

FROM: Harold Stone, Electric Department Superintendent 

RE: Nockamixon State Park; Utility pole request 

We have received a letter addressed to the Borough Council from Obie Derr, Park Manager at 
Nockamixon State Park, requesting assistance with a project to establish a nesting site for Osprey within 
the park system. 

From the Electric Department’s perspective, providing a used utility pole to support this initiative would 
not be an issue. We currently have several used poles approximately 40-43 feet in length that could still 
have additional service life if used for a project such as this. These poles were from various projects, 
including the removal from Kulp Field Baseball lighting and the Callowhill/Glassworks project (used to 
bring power into the former PRA property). Supplying this pole could also help reduce disposal costs for 
the Borough. 

If the Council approves supporting this project, the delivery and installation are estimated to take 
approximately three hours. This would involve the use of the line truck, possibly a bucket truck, and 2-3 
linemen. 

If approved, I would also support this initiative, which presents an opportunity for the Borough to work 
with a neighboring community and state park, while hopefully contributing to local wildlife habitat. 

Harold Stone 
Electric Department Superintendent 





States threaten to leave PJM without expanded role in grid operator 

“If PJM refuses to change, we will be forced to go in a different direction,” said Pennsylvania 
Gov. Josh Shapiro, a Democrat. 

Published Sept. 23, 2025 

Republican and Democratic governors of PJM Interconnection states on Monday threatened to 
pull out of the grid operator’s markets unless states are given a role in governing the 
organization. 

“If PJM refuses to change, we will be forced to go in a different direction,” Pennsylvania Gov. 
Josh Shapiro, a Democrat, said at a day-long, state-led conference in Philadelphia. “That is not 
a path that I am eager to chart, but I am not willing to stand idly by and let PJM dictate our 
future.” 

Virginia Gov. Glenn Youngkin, a Republican, also said his state was prepared to leave PJM, 
which runs the grid and wholesale power markets where 67 million people live across 13 Mid-
Atlantic and Midwest states and the District of Columbia. 

“This is a crisis of not having enough power, and it is a crisis in confidence,” Youngkin said. “It’s 
this crisis that demands real reform, real reform immediately — and at the top of the list is that 
states must have a real say.” 

Maryland Gov. Wes Moore, a Democrat, and New Jersey Gov. Phil Murphy, a Democrat, also 
called for giving states a larger role at PJM. 

Unlike in grid organizations such as the Southwest Power Pool and the Midcontinent 
Independent System Operator, states in PJM lack a formal role in PJM governance. 

Governors have sharpened their focus on PJM since capacity prices spiked in a July 2024 
auction and again this year, leading to double digit electric bill increases in some states. The 
jump in capacity prices is partly driven by PJM’s forecast for data center additions in parts of its 
footprint. 

In a Sept.10 letter to PJM’s board, a bipartisan group of governors called for increased state 
representation at PJM, an increased focus on consumer interests and reforms to the grid 
operator’s stakeholder processes. 

Eleven PJM states plan to form a “governors’ collaborative” to work on PJM issues, Jacob 
Finkel, a Shapiro aide, said at the meeting. They include Delaware, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, 
Michigan, Ohio, Pennsylvania, New Jersey, North Carolina, Tennessee and Virginia. 
Reforms that would give states a larger role at PJM need to occur in “months, not years,” 
Shapiro said in a press briefing. 

PJM open to discussions, independent producers oppose states’ request 

PJM is open to discussing potential reforms, but that “could take some time,” Manu Asthana, 
PJM president and CEO, said at the meeting. 



Any changes would need to be approved by PJM’s Members Committee, which represents the 
grid operator’s members, or be done through a complaint filed with the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission, according to Asthana. 
 
In a statement, PJM said its governance structure with a nine-member board has allowed the 
grid operator to deliver up to $4 billion in annual savings for the region it serves. Also, meeting 
the demands of the fast-changing energy landscape “will require PJM, the industry and 
especially our states all working in concert,” the grid operator said. 
 
The governors’ demands met with pushback from the Electric Power Supply Association, a trade 
group for independent power producers that opposes giving states a governance role at PJM. 
 
“The recent actions to cap the capacity auction results was the opening salvo of a campaign to 
exert control over the non-partisan regional grid operator by elected officials pursuing short-term 
political wins ahead of the midterm election,” EPSA President and CEO Todd Snitchler said 
Monday in a press release. 
 
Giving states a bigger role at PJM will lead to “red tape, gridlock, and a stifling of critically 
needed investment,” Snitchler said. Instead, states should streamline their permitting 
requirements for natural gas infrastructure and scale back policies that cause power plants to 
retire, he said. 
 
FERC filing rights 
 
Participants at the conference called for at least two major reforms: giving states the right to file 
PJM-related proposals at the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and a role in selecting 
board members. 
 
Having Federal Power Act section 205 “filing rights” — even if they are rarely used — gives 
states influence in a grid operator’s policy discussions, according to Heather Hunt, executive 
director of the New England States Committee on Electricity, a group representing the region’s 
governors. 
 
NESCOE is able to present proposals to FERC through “jump ball” filings that are offered 
alongside proposals from ISO New England. 
 
“NESCOE is able to use that jump ball, and does so, actually, very rarely,” Hunt said. “The fact 
that it exists, though, is very powerful … It’s a little bit of an enticement for ISO to listen hard to 
states.” 
 
Citing his experience with MISO, Dan Scripps, Michigan Public Service Commission chair, 
echoed Hunt’s comments. 
 
“The biggest impact on that is not the fact that we file, because we very rarely do — it’s how 
states then show up in the cost allocation conversation, and increasingly, the [transmission] 
planning conversation,” Scripps said. “Because that [filing right is] there in the background, the 
conversation is just fundamentally different.” 
 
Scripps called for making states partners with PJM. 
 



“If you’re locked out, you end up … throwing rocks from the outside, whereas if you’re brought in 
and you’re centrally involved … it’s a different conversation,” Scripps said. 
States need to be “key partners” with PJM, according to Abe Silverman, an assistant research 
scholar at Johns Hopkins University and former general counsel and executive policy counsel 
for the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities. 

PJM should give states a role in selecting the grid operator’s board members, with a preference 
for people who live in PJM, and with at least one seat dedicated to a former or current state 
regulator within the PJM footprint, Silverman said. States should also have the right to file 
proposals at FERC, he added. 

“Bringing that political perspective into the process is incredibly valuable,” Silverman said. “The 
idea that PJM states should just sit there and take it is just not right.” 

States should ask PJM to consult with the Organization of PJM States Inc., which represents 
state utility commissions, before the grid operator makes resource adequacy-related proposals 
at FERC, according to Kent Chandler, a senior fellow at the R Street Institute, a public policy 
think thank based in Washington, D.C., and former member of the Kentucky Public Service 
Commission. 

If OPSI doesn’t like PJM’s proposal, the group could file an alternate proposal to be filed 
alongside the PJM plan, he said. 

“It would provide … real ownership from the states,” Chandler said. “It would keep them from 
sniping from the sideline, and it would say, ‘Put your money where your mouth is. If you have 
issues with our proposal, come up with your own.’” 



PERKASIE BOROUGH 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-44 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH COUNCIL IN AND FOR THE 
BOROUGH OF PERKASIE, BUCKS COUNTY, COMMONWEALTH OF 
PENNSYLVANIA, APPROVING THE STORMWATER CONTROLS AND 
BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR THE CASADONTI HOMES 
GRANDVIEW AVENUE PROJECT 

WHEREAS, JOSEPH S. AND HANNAH A. CASADONTI (collectively 

“Landowner”) are the owners of certain real property in the Borough of Perkasie, identified as 

Bucks County Tax Parcel No. 33-006-138; and 

WHEREAS, Landowner submitted a Grading Permit Plan for the Property pursuant to 

plans entitled Permit Plan for Casadonti Homes for Grandview Avenue, prepared by Holmes 

Cunningham, LLC, consisting of two (2) sheets, dated March 21, 2025, and last revised July 28, 

2025; and 

WHEREAS, Landowner proposes to construct a single-family dwelling with related 

improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the Property has been designed with certain stormwater management 

improvements; and  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Borough Council of the Borough of 

Perkasie, that the Borough Council hereby approves the Stormwater Controls and Best 

Management Practices Operations and Maintenance Agreement for the Casadonti Homes – 

Grandview Avenue Project, and authorizes the Borough Council President and Borough 

Manager to execute the Agreement.  



 2 
 

 THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED by the Perkasie Borough Council on the 

6th day of October, 2025. 

 

ATTEST:      BOROUGH OF PERKASIE: 
 
 
 
By:        By:       
             Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary    James Ryder, Council President 



















1 

PERKASIE BOROUGH 
ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF PERKASIE, BUCKS 
COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA, AMENDING CHAPTER 180 OF THE 

PERKASIE BOROUGH CODE OF ORDINANCES  
PERTAINING TO PARKING REGULATIONS 

WHEREAS, the Pennsylvania Borough Code at 8 Pa.C.S.A. § 101 et seq., authorizes the 

Borough Council of the Borough of Perkasie (“Borough Council”) to make and adopt ordinances 

that are consistent with the Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth when necessary for the 

proper management, care and control of the Borough and the maintenance of peace, good 

government, health and welfare of the Borough and its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough of Perkasie, in furtherance of the authority noted previously in 

this ordinance, has determined to amend the provisions of its Code of Ordinances so as to restrict 

parking on West Market Street and South Ninth Street; and 

WHEREAS, after public hearing, the Borough Council deems it to be in the best interest 

and general welfare of the citizens and residents of the Borough to amend its Code of Ordinances 

so as to modify the parking restrictions; and 

WHEREAS, Borough Council, after due consideration of the proposed ordinance at a 

duly advertised public meeting, has determined that the health, safety, and general welfare of the 

residents of Perkasie Borough will be served by this amendment to the Perkasie Code of 

Ordinances. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED by the Borough Council 

of the Borough of Perkasie, Bucks County, Pennsylvania, and it is hereby enacted and ordained 

by the authority of same as follows: 



2 

SECTION 1.  The Perkasie Borough Code of Ordinances (Section 180-43 Schedule IX: 

Parking Prohibited at All Times), is hereby amended as follows: 

a. By adding the following no-parking restrictions:

Name of Street Side Location 

West Market Street South From South 3rd Street curb west for 88 feet 

West Market Street North From South 3rd Street curb west for 80 feet 

South 9th Street East From Pine Street curb south for 85 feet 

South 9th Street East From Pine Street curb north for 64 feet 

 SECTION 2.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances that are inconsistent herewith, are 

hereby repealed, it being understood and intended that all ordinances and the Borough Code of 

Ordinances that are not otherwise specifically in conflict or inconsistent with this Ordinance, 

shall remain in full force and effect, the same being reaffirmed hereby.   

SECTION 3.  The Council of the Borough of Perkasie does hereby reserve the right, 

from time to time, to adopt modifications of, supplements to, or amendments of this Ordinance, 

including this provision. 

SECTION 4.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional, by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such provision shall be separate, distinct, and independent, and such holding shall 

not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 5.  The failure of the Borough of Perkasie to enforce any provisions of this 

Ordinance shall not constitute a waiver by the Borough of its rights of future enforcement 

hereunder. 



3 

SECTION 6.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately and be in force from and 

after its enactment as provided by law. 

SECTION 7.  Under the authority conferred by the Pennsylvania Borough Code at 8 

Pa.C.S.A. § 101 et seq., and other relevant statutory law, the Council of the Borough of Perkasie 

in the County of Bucks, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania does hereby enact and ordain this 

Ordinance for the Borough of Perkasie. 

Approved by the Borough Council of the Borough of Perkasie, this _______ day of 

_______________, 2025. 

Attest:  BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary James Ryder, Council President 

Examined and approved this ____ day of ________________, 2025. 

____________________________________ 
Jeff Hollenbach, Mayor 

THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE 
IMMEDIATELY UPON ENACTMENT AND SIGNATURE 





























































C
2
C

 D
E

S
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P C

iv
il
 E

n
g

in
e

e
ri
n
g

 a
n
d

 S
u
rv

e
y
in

g
S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s
 f
ro

m
 C

o
n
c
e

p
t 

to
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n

3
7

 E
a

st
 P

e
n
n
 A

ve
n
u
e

W
e

rn
e

rs
vi

lle
, 

P
A

 1
9

5
6

5
6

1
0

.8
6

0
.6

0
5

0
  
 w

w
w

.c
2

c
d

g
.c

o
m

ZE-1

– 

– 

0

1 inch = 800 ft.

400 800 1600

( IN FEET )

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch =      ft.

30 60 12060

60



1

Megan McShane

From: Megan McShane
Sent: Thursday, October 2, 2025 3:14 PM
To: Megan McShane
Subject: Constitution Square Subdivision - Punch List Items

From: Brett Slivka <BrettS@KayBuilders.com>  
Sent: Thursday, October 2, 2025 1:54 PM 
To: Douglas Rossino <drossino@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Cc: Andrea Coaxum - Borough of Perkasie (manager@perkasieborough.org) <manager@perkasieborough.org>; Jason 
Maurer <jmaurer@bucksccd.org>; Scott Detweiler <sdetweiler@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Subject: Re: Constitution Square Subdivision - Punch List Items 

Doug. Jason. We are planning to begin this work on Monday. 

Brett Slivka 
Kay Builders 
4845383695 

From: Douglas Rossino <drossino@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 24, 2025 1:04:35 PM 
To: Brett Slivka <BrettS@KayBuilders.com> 
Cc: Andrea Coaxum - Borough of Perkasie (manager@perkasieborough.org) <manager@perkasieborough.org>; Jason 
Maurer <jmaurer@bucksccd.org>; Scott Detweiler <sdetweiler@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Subject: Constitution Square Subdivision - Punch List Items  

Brett, 

Good afternoon. I stopped by the Constitution Square Subdivision today and didn’t see any work taking place. I wanted 
to find out if there was any type of schedule for the completion of the remaining punch list items. The landscape 
planting and conversion of the stormwater basin should take place now during the planting season to ensure that the 
plants are given their best chance of survival, especially if Kay Builders is still trying to closeout on the project this year. 
Please let me know the schedule for completion of the project. Thanks. 

Douglas C. Rossino, P.E., CME, M.ASCE, Senior Project Manager 
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
65 E. Butler Avenue, Suite 100, New Britain, PA 18901 
Main: 215-345-4330 | Direct: 267-337-6882 

www.gilmore-assoc.com  | BUILDING ON A FOUNDATION OF EXCELLENCE 

The information contained in this e-mail transmission is privileged and confidential and intended only for the use of the individual(s) 
and/or entity(ies) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any unauthorized disclosure, copying, 
distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of the e-mail materials is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-
mail transmission in error, please immediately notify us by telephone at 215-345-4330. Thank you. 



1

Megan McShane

From: Megan McShane
Sent: Wednesday, October 1, 2025 9:16 AM
To: Megan McShane
Subject: Constitution Square Subdivision - Punch List Items

From: Brett Slivka <BrettS@KayBuilders.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, September 30, 2025 2:03 PM 
To: Douglas Rossino <drossino@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Cc: Andrea Coaxum - Borough of Perkasie (manager@perkasieborough.org) <manager@perkasieborough.org>; Jason 
Maurer <jmaurer@bucksccd.org>; Scott Detweiler <sdetweiler@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Subject: RE: Constitution Square Subdivision - Punch List Items 
 
Planning to get there over the next 2 weeks.  
 

From: Douglas Rossino <drossino@gilmore-assoc.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, September 24, 2025 1:05 PM 
To: Brett Slivka <BrettS@KayBuilders.com> 
Cc: Andrea Coaxum - Borough of Perkasie (manager@perkasieborough.org) <manager@perkasieborough.org>; Jason 
Maurer <jmaurer@bucksccd.org>; Scott Detweiler <sdetweiler@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Subject: Constitution Square Subdivision - Punch List Items 
 
BreƩ, 
 
Good aŌernoon. I stopped by the ConsƟtuƟon Square Subdivision today and didn’t see any work taking place. I wanted 
to find out if there was any type of schedule for the compleƟon of the remaining punch list items. The landscape 
planƟng and conversion of the stormwater basin should take place now during the planƟng season to ensure that the 
plants are given their best chance of survival, especially if Kay Builders is sƟll trying to closeout on the project this year. 
Please let me know the schedule for compleƟon of the project. Thanks. 
 
  

 

Douglas C. Rossino, P.E., CME, M.ASCE, Senior Project Manager 
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
65 E. Butler Avenue, Suite 100, New Britain, PA 18901 
Main: 215-345-4330 | Direct: 267-337-6882 
  
www.gilmore-assoc.com  | BUILDING ON A FOUNDATION OF EXCELLENCE  

 
The informaƟon contained in this e-mail transmission is privileged and confidenƟal and intended only for the use of the individual(s) 
and/or enƟty(ies) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby noƟfied that any unauthorized disclosure, copying, 
distribuƟon or taking of any acƟon in reliance on the contents of the e-mail materials is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-
mail transmission in error, please immediately noƟfy us by telephone at 215-345-4330. Thank you. 
  









BOROUGH OF PERKASIE
620 W. Chestnut Street Phone: (215) 257-5065 
PO Box 96 Fax:  (215) 257-6875 
Perkasie, PA  18944-0096 

DATE: September 26, 2025 

TO: Andrea L. Coaxum 

FROM: Linda Reid 

SUBJECT: Recommendation to Hire Part-Time Events Assistant As-Needed 

Perkasie Borough holds at least 37 community events outside normal working hours, requiring at least 
240 events staff hours for onsite event management. These events include 28 indoor and outdoor 
Farmers Markets, 6 Summer Concerts, the Under the Stars Car Show, the Fall Festival and America’s 
Oldest Tree Lighting.  More staff hours are needed when the Borough hosts the Memorial Day Parade & 
Service and for additional or ad-hoc events like the block pARTy or Holiday pop-ups.  

In order to ensure on-site, out-of-hours coverage, I have shared the opportunity to work extra hours 
with existing Borough staff, and I am building a list of part-time staff members who we can call on to 
work events as-needed.  

Cassandra Grillo, Lauren Bahry and I all work events on-site and out of office hours. Council has already 
approved the hiring of Kelly Myers and Jessica Tantorno as Events Assistants As-Needed, but we 
continue to experience issues with staff availability for so many community events.  

Accordingly, I would like to recommend the hiring of Marissa Carmean to the position of part-time 
Events Assistant As-Needed for the Borough, effective October 11, 2025.  The starting rate for Marissa 
will be $21 per hour as listed in the 2025 Wage Schedule.  

Marissa is familiar with the Perkasie Farmers Market, having volunteered at several of them in 2025. She 
is personable and professional, and I believe she will do a great job as one of Perkasie Borough’s Events 
Assistants As-Needed.  



PERKASIE BOROUGH 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-45 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PERKASIE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING THE RETURN OF THE GRADING PERMIT ESCROW 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $227.32 FOR THE PROJECT LOCATED AT 650 
SHADYWOOD DRIVE AND AUTHORIZING THE SIGNATURE OF THE 
BOROUGH MANAGER ON THE GRADING PERMIT ESCROW 
RELEASE AND CLOSE OUT OF THE ACCOUNT 

WHEREAS, Rosemarie & Mark Toub (“Applicants”) received approval from the 

Borough for a grading permit for a project located at 650 Shadywood Drive; and  

WHEREAS, the grading permit is complete and the Grading Permit Escrow may be 

released. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Borough of Perkasie, as 

follows, that the remainder of the Grading Permit Escrow for the project located at 650 

Shadywood Drive shall be returned to the Applicants, upon confirmation by the Borough that 

there are no outstanding or forthcoming engineering and legal fees, and closed out.   

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Borough Manager is hereby authorized to sign the 

Grading Permit Escrow Release and close out of the account. 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED by the Borough Council of Perkasie 

Borough on the 6th day of October, 2025. 

ATTEST: BOROUGH OF PERKASIE: 

By: By: 
Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary   James Ryder, Council President 



Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
Building on a Foundation of Excellence 

www.gilmore-assoc.com 

65 East Butler Avenue│Suite 100│New Britain, PA 18901│Phone: 215-345-4330│Fax: 215-345-8606 

July 14, 2025 

File No. 24-01194 

Cassandra L. Grillo, CZO 
Zoning Officer and Code Enforcement Administrator 
Borough of Perkasie 
620 West Chestnut Street 
P.O. Box 96 
Perkasie, PA 18944 

RE: Final Site Inspection – Approval 
650 Shadywood Drive 
Tax Parcel #33-007-085 
Perkasie Borough, Bucks County, PA 

Dear Cassandra: 

Gilmore & Associates, Inc. (G&A) conducted a final site inspection at 650 Shadywood Drive on July 11, 
2025 to verify that the improvements are complete as shown on the approved Zoning Plans prepared for 
Rosemarie & Mark Toub, 650 Shadywood Drive, as prepared by Site Engineering Concepts, LLC, two (2) 
sheets, dated December 20, 2024, and as required for use of the in-ground pool and patio.  All required 
improvements appear complete.  However, we note that permanent mature grass growth shall be 
established in the area of the construction access to the south and west of the pool installation. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

Douglas C. Rossino, P.E. 
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
Borough Engineers 

DCR 

cc: Andrea L. Coaxum, Borough Manager 
Megan McShane, Executive Assistant  
Rosemarie & Mark Toub, Owner 
Julie Jones, Blue Haven Pools, Applicant 
Erik Garton, P.E., E.V.P., Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 



PERKASIE BOROUGH 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-46 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PERKASIE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING THE RETURN OF THE GRADING PERMIT ESCROW 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $396.08 FOR THE PROJECT LOCATED AT 805 
NORTH RIDGE ROAD AND AUTHORIZING THE SIGNATURE OF THE 
BOROUGH MANAGER ON THE GRADING PERMIT ESCROW 
RELEASE AND CLOSE OUT OF THE ACCOUNT 

WHEREAS, Zack Conolly (“Applicant”) received approval from the Borough for a 

grading permit for a project located at 805 North Ridge Road; and  

WHEREAS, the grading permit is complete and the Grading Permit Escrow may be 

released. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Borough of Perkasie, as 

follows, that the remainder of the Grading Permit Escrow for the project located at 805 North 

Ridge Road shall be returned to the Applicant, upon confirmation by the Borough that there are 

no outstanding or forthcoming engineering and legal fees, and closed out.   

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Borough Manager is hereby authorized to sign the 

Grading Permit Escrow Release and close out of the account. 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED by the Borough Council of Perkasie 

Borough on the 6th day of October, 2025. 

ATTEST: BOROUGH OF PERKASIE: 

By: By: 
Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary   James Ryder, Council President 



1

Megan McShane

From: Megan McShane
Sent: Tuesday, September 30, 2025 1:15 PM
To: Megan McShane
Subject: 805 N. Ridge Road

From: Douglas Rossino <drossino@gilmore-assoc.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 15, 2025 8:40 AM 
To: Cassandra Grillo <cgrillo@perkasieborough.org> 
Cc: Scott Detweiler <sdetweiler@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Subject: RE: 805 N. Ridge Road Final Site Inspection for Aboveground Pool and Detached Garage 

Cassandra, 

Good morning. Since all work appears complete for 805 N. Ridge Road, I have attached the Grading/Drainage 
Permit with the ‘Approved for Occupancy’ checked and signed for both the Detached Garage and Aboveground 
Pool. Please notify the Property Owner about the completion of the project. If there are any questions, please don’t 
hesitate to ask. 

Douglas C. Rossino, P.E., CME, M.ASCE, Senior Project Manager 
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
65 E. Butler Avenue, Suite 100, New Britain, PA 18901 
Main: 215-345-4330 | Direct: 267-337-6882 

www.gilmore-assoc.com  | BUILDING ON A FOUNDATION OF EXCELLENCE 

The information contained in this e-mail transmission is privileged and confidential and intended only for the use of the individual(s) 
and/or entity(ies) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any unauthorized disclosure, copying, 
distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of the e-mail materials is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-
mail transmission in error, please immediately notify us by telephone at 215-345-4330. Thank you. 

From: Scott Detweiler <sdetweiler@gilmore-assoc.com>  
Sent: Monday, April 14, 2025 7:10 PM 
To: Douglas Rossino <drossino@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Cc: 'Cassandra Grillo' <cgrillo@perkasieborough.org> 
Subject: RE: 805 N. Ridge Road Final Site Inspection for Aboveground Pool and Detached Garage 

Doug, 
I met with Zack Connoly today and note all installations appear complete as noted on the 2 plans. 
These permits appear ok to close out. 
If you have any further questions please let me know. 
Scott 

From: Douglas Rossino <drossino@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Sent: Friday, April 11, 2025 1:06 PM 
To: Scott Detweiler <sdetweiler@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Cc: 'Cassandra Grillo' <cgrillo@perkasieborough.org> 



2

Subject: 805 N. Ridge Road Final Site Inspection for Aboveground Pool and Detached Garage 
Importance: High 
  
Scott, 
  
The Borough has two (2) open Grading Permits for the installation of an aboveground pool and detached garage at 805 
N. Ridge Road. The pool and garage were completed in 2024. The Borough needs us to verify that all items associated 
with the Grading Permits are complete. Attached are the approved Grading Permits. Please stop by the property and 
verify that all items are constructed in accordance with the plans and approved. I spoke to the Property Owner (Zack 
Conolly) this week about the inspection. Zack wants to be present for the inspection and asked if you can call him on 
Monday (4/14) at 267-446-1697 to schedule the inspection. Once your inspection is complete, please respond to this 
email to Cassandra and I and let us know what you find. Thank you. 
  
  

Douglas C. Rossino, P.E., CME, M.ASCE, Senior Project Manager 
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
65 E. Butler Avenue, Suite 100, New Britain, PA 18901 
Main: 215-345-4330 | Direct: 267-337-6882 
  
www.gilmore-assoc.com  | BUILDING ON A FOUNDATION OF EXCELLENCE  

 
The information contained in this e-mail transmission is privileged and confidential and intended only for the use of the individual(s) 
and/or entity(ies) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any unauthorized disclosure, copying, 
distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of the e-mail materials is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-
mail transmission in error, please immediately notify us by telephone at 215-345-4330. Thank you. 
  



1 

PERKASIE BOROUGH 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-48 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH COUNCIL IN AND 
FOR THE BOROUGH OF PERKASIE, BUCKS COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA, APPROVING THE RELEASE AND 
CLOSE OUT OF THE ESCROW ACCOUNT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,297.22 FOR THE PERKASIE REGIONAL 
AUTHORITY RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE SIGNATURE OF THE 
BOROUGH MANAGER ON THE RELEASE AND CLOSE 
OUT OF THE ACCOUNT 

WHEREAS, the Perkasie Regional Authority (“Applicant”) proposed the construction of 

a 0.75 million-gallon water reservoir tank to be constructed of concrete.  The plan related to 

Bucks County Tax Parcel 33-003-011, which contains approximately 2.1 acres.  The property, 

which is the subject of this Resolution, is located along the south side of Ridge Avenue at the 

intersection with N. Ridge Road.  The site is zoned R-2, and the intended use is a public utility 

which is the construction and maintenance of a public water reservoir;  

WHEREAS, the Plans were prepared by Andersen Engineering Associates, Inc., 

consisting of 10 sheets dated January 27, 2022, and last revised April 6, 2023; 

WHEREAS, upon inspection Gilmore & Associates, Inc. has certified that the PRA 

Reservoir Replacement Project is complete and the Escrow Account in the amount of $1,297.22 

may be released to the Applicant and closed out, upon confirmation by the Borough that there 

are no outstanding or forthcoming engineering and legal fees.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Borough of Perkasie, as 

follows, that the Escrow Account in the amount of $1,297.22 may be released and closed out 

upon confirmation by the Borough that there are no outstanding or forthcoming engineering and 

legal fees. 



2 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Borough Manager is hereby authorized to sign the 

release of the Escrow and close out of the account.  

THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED by the Perkasie Borough Council on the 

6th day of October, 2025. 

BOROUGH OF PERKASIE: 

ATTEST: By:_________________________________ 
 James Ryder, Council President 

By:__________________________ 
 Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary 





1

Megan McShane

From: Megan McShane
Sent: Friday, October 3, 2025 11:48 AM
To: Megan McShane
Subject: PRA Escrow Release 

From: Douglas Rossino <drossino@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 30, 2025 11:24 AM 
To: Finance <finance@perkasieborough.org> 
Cc: Cassandra Grillo <cgrillo@perkasieborough.org>; Linda Reid <community@PerkasieBorough.org> 
Subject: RE: ESCROW Release  

Rebecca, 

The PRA Reservoir Replacement Project is complete with no more billing. I am closing the project. 

The linked image cannot be displayed.  The file may have been moved, renamed, or deleted. Verify that
the link points to the correct file and location. Douglas C. Rossino, P.E., CME, M.ASCE, Senior Project Manager 

Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
65 E. Butler Avenue, Suite 100, New Britain, PA 18901 
Main: 215-345-4330 | Direct: 267-337-6882 

www.gilmore-assoc.com  | BUILDING ON A FOUNDATION OF EXCELLENCE 

The information contained in this e-mail transmission is privileged and confidential and intended only for the use of the individual(s) 
and/or entity(ies) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any unauthorized disclosure, copying, 
distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of the e-mail materials is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-
mail transmission in error, please immediately notify us by telephone at 215-345-4330. Thank you. 

From: Finance <finance@perkasieborough.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 30, 2025 10:43 AM 
To: Douglas Rossino <drossino@gilmore-assoc.com> 
Cc: Cassandra Grillo <cgrillo@perkasieborough.org>; Linda Reid <community@PerkasieBorough.org> 
Subject: Fw: ESCROW Release 

Good Morning, Doug, 



2

  

Can you please confirm that there aren't any outstanding invoices for the engineering work before I have 
Jeff prepare a resolution for the release of the escrow. 

  

Thank you, 

Rebecca 

  

  





















































Perkasie’s 24th annual Fall Festival to be held on October 5 

By MediaNews Group 
PUBLISHED: September 29, 2025 at 1:04 PM EDT 

PERKASIE — Perkasie Borough has announced that the 24th annual Fall Festival will be held 
on October 5 from noon to 4 p.m. 

In downtown Perkasie, guests will find a giant inflatable farm maze, highland cows and animal 
rescues, a vendor fair and food trucks, pumpkin decorating, crafts and games, tractor rides and 
outdoor games and activities for all ages. In addition, an AHA sensory-friendly area will be 
located in the town center for kids and those with sensory sensitivities, said a Perkasie borough 
press release. 

There will be live entertainment throughout the day, featuring the Bucks County Folk Song 
Society, Back Porch Jug Band, In Yellow and performances by Pennridge RAMS Cheer and the 
Pride of Erin Irish Dances. 

Meanwhile, Menlo Park will offer additional family-friendly fun, including trampolines, a moon 
bounce, balloon twisting. face painting, fall-themed crafts, pony rides (small fee applies) and a 
scarecrow decorating contest (one per family while supplies last; judging takes place at 3:30 
p.m. and winners will be announced just before 4 p.m.). Henry Hopf will be performing live
music, said the release.

Additional activities include a pie-eating contest at 3:15 p.m., the opening of the Perkasie 
Carousel until 5 p.m., a Meat Wagon food truck, Rita’s Water Ice and a snack stand. 

There will be free shuttle buses connecting both event locations. Guests may also walk between 
the locations. 

ADA parking is available at the Menlo Aquatics Center lot and at Borough Hall (access from 7th 
Street). Additional event parking is offered at several business lots around the town center and 
at Pennridge South Middle School, 610 S. 5th St., said the release. 

Event information and parking & road closure details are available at: 
https://perkasieborough.org/information/community-events/fall-festival/ 

Event sponsors include A&T Chevrolet Subaru, American Heritage FCU, Gilmore & Associates, 
Penn Community Bank, Grim, Biehn & Thatcher, Colmar Dentistry for Kids, QNB Bank, 
Kimberley Vassal Coe & Weimer Insurance, Renewal by Andersen, First Student, Redtail 
Financial Group, Dunkin’ and Joe Davis Autosport. 

Questions about the Fall Festival can be sent to events@perkasieborough.org. 



Bucks County Boroughs AssociaƟon 

Bucks County Boroughs, 

In an aƩempt to keep costs down, which we are counƟng on to increase aƩendance at our 
dinner meeƟngs, we are making two changes. 1) We are going to try having our meeƟngs in 
member boroughs public meeƟng rooms and 2) serve sandwiches, wraps, hoagies, etc. instead 
of a sit-down hot meal. We were charging $45 per meal when meeƟng at the Logan Inn, and 
losing money on each meal. Please let us know if you have any specific dietary needs. (for 
health reasons only). 

The first meeƟng using the new format will take place October 30, 2025, at Burkart Hall in New 
Britain Borough. Please see the aƩached flyer for details.  
The cost per person will be only $30. Our guest speaker is Bucks County District AƩorney Jen 
Schorn.  

Hopefully the new format is seen as a posiƟve change. Let me know if your borough would like 
host a meeƟng. 

Address 

56 Keeley Avenue 
New Britain Borough, PA 18901 

Parking InstrucƟons 

Park across the street at the borough administraƟon building. (45 Keeley Ave.) 
The event is across the street at Burkart Hall. 
DO NOT go in the front entrance. Use the stairs on the side facing the small parking lot. There is 
an elevator in the back. 

Respecƞully, 

Ed Child 
BCBA President 



Join Us! 
Bucks County Boroughs AssociaƟon MeeƟng 

October 30, 6:00 PM 
Burkart Hall 

56 Keeley Avenue, New Britain Borough 
 

Guest Speaker 

Jen Schorn 
Bucks County District AƩorney 

 
Dinner $30 

Please send your checks to 
Steve Ascher 

45 Keeley Avenue 
New Britain, PA 18901 

 
Please respond with your aƩendee count no later than 

October 27 to echild1@verizon.net 



THE LIVE WIRE 
 September 2025 

Save these Dates! 

PMEA Spring Superintendents/ Foremen Meeting 

March 26 & 27, 2026 @ The Nittany Lion Inn, State College 
*Registration opens in January 2026*

PMEA 2026 Annual Conference – September 9 – 11, 2026 

Omni Bedford Springs, Bedford  

PMEA Business Workshop 

– September 9, 2026 @ Omni Bedford Springs, Bedford

2025 Training for Line Crews – 
*Training for 2026 will be announced soon*

Team Building 
October 16 & 17 - Grove City 
October 20 & 21 - Chambersburg 
October 22 & 23 - Lansdale 

Proposed Data Center Development Transparency Act

Senators Rosemary Brown (R) and David Argall (R) are proposing legislation to strengthen 
oversight of data center development through mandatory pre-application consultations between 
developers and local officials. This measure aims to protect municipal infrastructure while ensuring 
transparency and providing elected officials with 
comprehensive project information before formal 
review begins. 

In their co-sponsorship memo, the Senators note: 
“Data centers represent a growing industry with 
the potential to bring substantial economic 
opportunity to the Commonwealth. However, they 
are also resource-intensive facilities. Without 
strong proactive planning and oversight, these 
demands can place significant strain on local 
infrastructure that could be detrimental to a 
community’s future growth.” 

Key requirements of the proposed legislation would mandate that data center developers: 

Submit a pre-application meeting request 30 days before filing formal development applications. 
These meetings must include: 

• Zoning and planning officials

• Elected officials with decision-making authority

• Third-party engineers and solicitors as needed

Provide comprehensive "will-serve" letters from all utility providers (water, sewer, electric, and 
fiber), demonstrating: 

• Available infrastructure capacity at full project build-out (not phased development)

• Potential impacts on existing residents' access to these services

This framework ensures local officials have complete information to assess a project's true 
infrastructure demands and long-term community impact before entering the formal review process. 



Governor Shapiro Said Electric Grid Operator PJM 
Needs Reform to Put Customers First  

The organization that manages the electric grid for Pennsylvania and 12 other states has moved 
too slowly in response to skyrocketing energy demand and consumers are paying for it, Gov. Josh 
Shapiro said Monday. 

Speaking at a conference of energy industry leaders and regulators in Philadelphia, Shapiro said 
PJM Interconnection must make changes, including giving states a bigger role in its governance, 
or the commonwealth could leave the consortium. 

“We need to be thinking about consumers and their costs, something that PJM, I think, doesn’t 
really spend a whole lot of time focused on,” Shapiro told reporters Monday after delivering opening 
remarks at the event. 

He said governors from each PJM state share concerns about the Valley Forge-based 
organization’s backlog of new energy projects awaiting approval while peak energy consumption is 
expected to increase by 20% in the next decade, according to PJM’s forecast. Much of that demand 
will come from data centers that house the computing power for artificial intelligence. 

“We need to move more quickly on these energy-producing projects. We’ve got to hold down costs. 
If PJM cannot do that, then Pennsylvania will look to go it alone,” Shapiro said. 

Virginia Gov. Glenn Youngkin, who spoke via video, said overhauling the state’s power policy was 
among his first calls for action after taking office in 2022. Youngkin, a Republican, said his 
administration predicted demand would grow faster than PJM’s forecast. 

“Indeed, instead of unlocking investment and fast-tracking critical projects, PJM has instead been 
responsible for bottlenecks and delays that crush jobs, drive up utility bills and leave families and 
businesses hurting,” he said. “This is a crisis of not having enough power, and it is a crisis in 
confidence.” 

Youngkin said Virginia lawmakers are working on legislation that would allow the state to reassess 
whether its utilities should remain part of PJM.  “This doesn’t mean that we are walking away, but 
it does mean that collectively, we recognize we need to represent and protect our ratepayers, and 
that means sending a clear, unified signal that PJM must modernize,” he said. 

PJM was founded in Philadelphia nearly a century ago when three electricity utilities connected 
their independent grids to share resources and improve reliability. With more than 1,000 
stakeholder members, it now ensures the flow of power to utilities in all or parts of 13 states from 
New Jersey to Illinois and the New York border to North Carolina. 

It is overseen by a board of governors through a consensus-based issue resolution process in 
which member organizations and stakeholders have weighted votes on issues that will go before 
the board. These include state consumer advocate organizations, like Pennsylvania’s Public 
Utilities Commission, but the states themselves have no direct input.  The board’s decisions are 
ultimately subject to approval by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.  

PJM’s stakeholder process and meetings are open to the public with agendas and minutes posted 
on its website, but members of the public are required to register for an account to watch meetings 
virtually. And while votes by the board’s members committee, the final stop for any action on 
governing documents, are public, critics have compared the process to a black box because 
stakeholders’ votes on questions before lower committees and subcommittees are secret.  

Lawmakers in several states have proposed laws requiring PJM members to report their votes to 
state regulators. They include a bill introduced by Pennsylvania state Rep. Chris Rabb (D-
Philadelphia), which passed in the House in July and awaits action in the Senate. 

“Utility companies operating in our regional power grid that determine the electric bills, 
environmental and public health of 65 million people should never be allowed to vote in secret,” 
Rabb said. “Such decisions must be publicly disclosed. End of story.” 

PJM CEO Manu Asthana, who is set to step down at the end of this year, said he’s proud of the 
reliability that PJM has provided through a series of unusual events during his tenure, including 
record peak demands, a pandemic, geomagnetic storms and the collapse of the Francis Scott Key 
Bridge in Baltimore, which threatened a major transmission line. 

Asthana said criticism of PJM’s interconnection queue, in which 63,000 megawatts of power 
projects await review for permission to connect to the grid, is not warranted.  

“There’s a lot of mythology and a lot of things that are said about our interconnection queue,” he 
said, noting that number is down from 200,000 megawatts when the organization implemented 
reforms in 2023. PJM also notes that it has cleared tens of thousands of megawatts worth of 
projects that have failed to come online for reasons outside of its control, including site acquisition, 
permitting and supply chain problems. 

PJM has also worked proactively with members to prioritize important projects, such as restarting 
Constellation Energy’s former Three Mile Island nuclear power plant, now renamed the Crane 
Clean Energy Center, and redeveloping Homer City, one of the nation’s largest coal power plants, 
into the nation’s largest natural gas-burning power stations. Both projects will power data centers.   

Experts who spoke during panels at the conference agreed with Shapiro, Youngkin and New Jersey 
Gov. Phil Murphy, who also spoke via video, that PJM is not serving consumers well. 

(continued on next page) 

 



PJM Reform (continued)   

“You’ve got 67 million people who are very concerned, and again, consumers are called voters, 
and that makes the politicians concerned,” said former FERC Chairman Mark Christie. Christie and 
former FERC Commissioner Allison Clements were recommended by a bipartisan panel of PJM-
state governors to fill vacancies on the board, but neither was ultimately nominated. 

“PJM should be reimagined in the governance sense,” Christie said, adding that he would not 
interfere with the technical aspects of operating the grid. “The policy making things that PJM does 
in their political policy, if it’s going to be a regional government for the grid, people who are elected 
will have a much bigger role in that.” 

Vincent Duane, a former senior vice president and general counsel at PJM, said changes need to 
go deeper than simply giving elected officials a bigger role. 

“I’m going to be blunt and unpopular when I say that PJM has become ungovernable,” Duane said 
“Adding seats to an already crowded banquet table with 1,000 parliamentarians with vastly different 
interests, I think, is going to ultimately leave states feeling disappointed with the outcomes.” 

What is missing is more purposeful and deliberate decision making from a strong executive branch 
in the organization that is accountable to state utility regulators, he said. 

Duane later added that as general counsel, PJM board members often asked him to whom they 
had a fiduciary responsibility. He said he had trouble answering the question. To say the 
responsibility was to the marketplace or membership was unsatisfactory. 

“Until we can get a good answer to that question, it’s premature to start talking about process and 
voting structures,” Duane said. 

Source:  Peter Hall, Pennsylvania Capital-Star, https://penncapital-star.com, published September 22, 2025.   
 
  

 
The AI Boom Hits PA:  How Will Lawmakers Respond?   
 
State Senator Katie Muth (D) toured a data center in her district this May, she discovered the source 
of growing concern statewide: AI servers that consume massive amounts of power and drive-up 
energy costs for consumers.  The experience prompted Muth to propose the "Pennsylvania 
Ratepayer Protection Act," one of at least a dozen bills addressing the commonwealth's hottest 
industrial issue. 

 
The Energy Cost Crisis 
Pennsylvania ranks second and 
third nationally for announced data 
center development, according to 
consulting firm Wood Mackenzie. 
The surge is already hitting 
consumers' wallets hard. 
 
PJM's independent market monitor 
identifies data centers as the 
primary cause of these 
"unprecedented" increases, 
accounting for about $9.3 billion of 
this year's auction prices across 
the 13-state grid that stretches 
from Chicago to New Jersey. 
 

Muth's upcoming legislation targets transmission costs—when new power-hungry facilities require 
new infrastructure, companies like PECO and PPL pass those costs to customers. Her bill, modeled 
on Oregon policies, would require "high-load" customers to cover infrastructure costs themselves. 
 
Political Divisions and Opportunities 
The state's politics complicate any solutions. Yet there's apparent agreement on one goal: attracting 
more AI development. 
 
At July's Energy and Innovation Summit in Pittsburgh, President Trump, Gov. Josh Shapiro, and 
Sen. Dave McCormick all celebrated more than $90 billion in tech investments announced for the 
state. Amazon Web Services alone is investing $20 billion, promising at least 1,250 "high-skilled" 
jobs. 
 
The legislature has found common ground before. In 2021, bipartisan support expanded tax credits 
for data center equipment purchases—an incentive currently costing the state $43 million annually 
and projected to exceed $50 million by decade's end. 
 
Competing Legislative Visions 
Shapiro's "Lightning Plan" packages six bills combining streamlined permitting for energy 
projects with clean energy policies, carbon cap-and-trade, and rural energy cost relief. While not 
directly targeting AI centers, it focuses on generating the power these facilities demand. 
 
Republicans favor deregulation. Senator Greg Rothman's bill would create "Commonwealth 
Opportunity Zones" with fast-track permitting and "regulatory sandboxes" encouraging 
deregulation. Rep. Jason Ortitay proposed a "Keystone Artificial Intelligence Authority" to centralize 
and streamline permitting. 

(continued on next page) 

 
 

https://penncapital-star.com/


AI Boom (continued)   

Internal Democratic tensions complicate Shapiro's agenda. His RESET bill, creating a central 
authority for approving large energy facilities, faces opposition from environmental groups fearing 
it could fast-track fossil fuel projects, and from local officials worried about losing siting authority. 
 
The Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative adds another wrinkle. Shapiro's predecessor joined the 
10-state cap-and-trade program in 2022, but Pennsylvania's participation remains tied up in courts. 
Senate Majority Leader Joe Pittman says the pending case leaves Republicans "very limited" in 
considering energy legislation. 
 
Environmental and Consumer Concerns Sidelined 
Critics worry Pennsylvania is repeating historical mistakes—rolling out the red carpet for industries 
without considering consequences.  "Pennsylvania's history is, we roll out the red carpet for every 
industry, regardless of whether its impacts are known or unknown," said John Quigley, former state 
environmental secretary and now senior fellow at the University of Pennsylvania's Kleinman Center. 
"Then we find out later we made a mistake. I don't see too much indication we're not on the same 
track." 
 
Water usage presents another overlooked concern. Quigley notes data centers can use millions of 
gallons daily, yet "nobody's raised the issue, nobody's planned for it"—concerning for a state where 
millions rely on groundwater wells. 
 
Alternative Paths Forward 
With legislative gridlock, regulatory agencies may drive policy.  The Pennsylvania Public Utility 
Commission held hearings in April about a potential "model tariff" ensuring data centers pay 
transmission costs they generate. The PUC could also require companies to help low-income 
residents afford energy bills. A spokesperson said the commission is drafting a proposal for release 
"in the near future."  PJM Interconnection is considering policies requiring data centers to "bring 
their own power" rather than straining existing grid capacity. 
 
Source:  Inside Climate News, September 2025. 
 

  

 

Highlights from the PMEA Annual Conference  
 
Strategic Focus on Industry Transformation 
The conference's opening session set 
an ambitious tone with "Navigating the 
New Energy Landscape: Strategic 
Priorities for Public Power in Times of 
Uncertainty." Industry leaders Jolene 
Thompson, President & CEO of AMP, 
and Scott Corwin, President & CEO of 
APPA, examined how recent federal 
legislation has reshaped the renewable 
energy landscape while municipalities 
grapple with unprecedented electricity 
demand growth. 
 
A standout panel, "Balancing Grid 
Reliability and Consumer Costs," 

featured Pennsylvania Public Utility 
Commission Chairman Steve DeFrank 
addressed the state's proactive response to 
last year's 22% surge in PJM capacity 
market pricing. The discussion highlighted 
Pennsylvania's emergence as a leading 
voice in tackling critical energy challenges, 
from AI-driven electricity demand to grid 
modernization needs.  
 
Practical Knowledge for Real-World 
Challenges 
The Business Workshop delivered 
immediately applicable insights through 
sessions like "Electric Utility Fund -- 

Accounting Fundamentals," where Baker Tilly's Bethany Ryers demystified GASB and FERC 
requirements while covering unique public power considerations including work orders, payroll 
allocation, and capital versus maintenance distinctions. 
 
The comprehensive 
"Understanding PJM -- 
The Fundamentals" panel, 
featured experts from 
GDS Associates, Smart 
Utility Management, and 
Salzmann Hughes, 
provided essential 
knowledge about one of 
the nation's largest 
regional transmission 
organizations and its 
impact on electricity costs 
and market dynamics. 
 

(continued on next page) 



PMEA Conference (continued)  

Innovation Meets Implementation 
PMEA demonstrated its forward-thinking approach with sessions on emerging technologies and 
operational excellence. Scott 
Corwin returned to present APPA's 
newly released "Guide to Utility 
Operational Excellence," outlining 
11 strategic areas that serve as 
critical pillars for municipal utilities 
navigating an increasingly complex 
energy landscape. 

The conference's cutting-edge 
session, "A Roadmap for AI 
Compliance, Policy, and Usage," 
led by Iowa State University's Mike 
Bootsma, addressed the practical 
implementation of artificial 
intelligence in utility operations 
while managing organizational and customer risks. 

Collaborative Solutions and 
Professional Development 
Recognizing that municipal 
utilities face varying challenges 
based on their size and 
resources, PMEA offered 
targeted breakout sessions. 
Managers and elected officials 
explored collaborative 
approaches including shared 
service agreements and mutual 
aid partnerships, while 
superintendents and foremen 
participated in specialized 
training discussions. 

The conference's structure fostered both 
formal learning and informal networking, 
with events ranging from the golf outing at 
Omni Bedford's Old Course to evening 
receptions that facilitated meaningful 
connections among Pennsylvania's public 
power community. 

To access presentations from this year’s 
conference, please visit the members 
only section of our website, 
www.papublicpower.org.  Presentations 
will be available for a limited time only.    

Do not miss out – this conference is for all 
of PMEA's members from large to small. 
Plan today to attend the Annual Conference next year, September 9 – 11, 2026! 

Share Your News…. 

Please share with us your exciting new projects, photos, personnel updates, and any other news!  
Your submissions should be sent to bosak@papublicpower.org at any time and we will use them 
in upcoming editions.  We also welcome your suggestions for topics of interest for our newsletters.  

Pennsylvania Municipal Electric Association 
1801 Market St., Suite 300   Camp Hill, PA 17011  

Tel: 717-489-2088   

info@papublicpower.org 

http://www.papublicpower.org/
mailto:bosak@papublicpower.org
mailto:info@papublicpower.org

	2025_10_06 Agenda
	Agenda Item 6A - Consider PRP
	Agenda Item 6B - Consider Expenditure for Rock Salt Purchase - 2025-2026
	Agenda Item 6C - Res 2025-47 - HC Spot for 509 Vine St
	Agenda Item 7A - Wholesale Power Cost Report - Aug 2025
	Agenda Item 7B - Consider Donation Req - Nockamixon State Park
	Agenda Item 7C - Installed Capacity Update
	Agenda Item 8A - Consider Res 2025-44 - Stormwater Agmt for Casadonti Homes
	Agenda Item 8B - Discuss Draft Ordin - Parking Restrictions on W Market St & S 9th St
	Agenda Item 8C - Discuss Position on 505 Constitution Ave
	Agenda Item 8D - Constitution Square Update
	Agenda Item 9A - Consider Park Event Appl - Bucks County United
	Agenda Item 10A - Consider Hiring As-Needed Events Assistant
	Agenda Item 11A - Consider Res 2025-45 - 650 Shadywood Dr - Grading Escrow Release
	Agenda Item 11B - Consider Res 2025-46 - 805 N Ridge Rd - Grading Escrow Release
	Agenda Item 11C - Consider Res 2025-48 - PRA Reservoir Repl Proj Final Escrow Release
	Agenda Item 12A - Consider Special Event Permit Appl & Fee Waiver Req - Pennridge Homecoming Parade
	Agenda Item 12B - Consider Special Event Permit Appl - The Craftery Market
	Borough News - Mural Feature
	Fall Festival Article
	Bucks County Boroughs Assoc Meeting Invite
	PMEA Live Wire - Sept 2025



